
City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, August 27, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant City 
Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate Pastor of 
Fellowship Baptist Church. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Proclamation: Lissencephaly Awareness Day – September 8, 2019 
 
4. Appreciation Presentation by Leadership Belton Trailblazers. 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-7 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider minutes of August 13, 2019, City Council meeting. 

 
6. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Civil Service Commission 
B. Historic Preservation Commission 

 
7. Consider an amendment to the Downtown Façade Improvement Grant Program. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
8. Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of office 

to newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to 

Commercial Two District on approximately 1.11 acres located at 1272 S. Wheat 
Road, at the northwest corner of S. Wheat Road and I-14.   

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural and 

Commercial Highway Districts to Commercial Two District on approximately 3.8 
acres located at 7879 S. I-35 Service Road, on the east side of I-35, across from 
Dillard Road.  

 
11. Hold a public hearing and consider the following: 
 

A. a Local Historic Landmark Designation for the Standpipe property; and 
B. a zoning change from Single Family Two with Conservation and Revitalization 

Overlay District to Single Family Two with Conservation and Revitalization 
Overlay District and Historical Preservation Overlay District for a Local Historic 
Landmark Designation on approximately 2.30 acres located at 306 West Avenue 
I, bound by West Avenue I on the north, West Avenue J on the south, South 
Davis Street on the east, and Hughes Street on the west. 

 
12. Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of Sundin Addition (Park Place 

Subdivision, Phase II), a replat of Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block 1, Park Place Subdivision, 
Phase I, to consolidate three lots into two lots at 1720 Landmark Drive, on the west 
side of Landmark Drive, south of Hastings Road. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

FY 2020 Budget 
 
13. Conduct a public hearing on the proposed 2019 Property Tax Rate used for the FY 

2020 Annual Budget. 
 
14. Call for a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 p.m., 

at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander, for the City of Belton Budget for 
Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2019, and ending September 30, 2020. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, August 27, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant City 
Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate Pastor of 
Fellowship Baptist Church. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Proclamation: Lissencephaly Awareness Day – September 8, 2019. 
 

Sergeant Kimberly Hamilton of the Belton Police Department, who is the mother of a 
young boy with Lissencephaly, will be present to receive this proclamation. 

 
4. Appreciation Presentation by Leadership Belton Trailblazers. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Trailblazers, a cohort of Leadership Belton 2019, completed a community impact 
project over the summer. The team installed trail marker signs along the Nolan 
Creek Hike and Bike Trail to increase safety and assist trail-goers in identifying their 
whereabouts while enjoying use of the trail. These signs will help civilians better 
communicate their location to first responders in case of an emergency. 
  
The Trailblazers would like to present a token of appreciation to Council and extend 
gratitude to all City employees who contributed to the successful completion of the 
project. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-7 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider minutes of August 13, 2019, City Council meeting. 

 
A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 

 
6. Consider reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Civil Service Commission (Jimmy Rowton) 
B. Historic Preservation Commission (Ann Carpenter, Barrett Covington) 

 
7. Consider an amendment to the Downtown Façade Improvement Grant 

Program. 
 

See Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. Recommend amending the FIG Program 
as presented. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
8. Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of 

office to newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Parks and Recreation Matt Bates. In the absence 
of the City Attorney, City Clerk Amy Casey will administer the Oath of Office. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District 

to Commercial Two District on approximately 1.11 acres located at 1272 S. 
Wheat Road, at the northwest corner of S. Wheat Road and I-14.   

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At their meeting on 
September 20, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of this zoning change, and Staff concurs. 
 

10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural and 
Commercial Highway Districts to Commercial Two District on approximately 
3.8 acres located at 7879 S. I-35 Service Road, on the east side of I-35, across 
from Dillard Road.  

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At their meeting on 
September 20, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of this zoning change, and Staff concurs. 

 
11. Hold a public hearing and consider the following: 

 
A. a Local Historic Landmark Designation for the Standpipe property; and 
B. a zoning change from Single Family Two with Conservation and 

Revitalization Overlay District to Single Family Two with Conservation and 
Revitalization Overlay District and Historical Preservation Overlay District 
for a Local Historic Landmark Designation on approximately 2.30 acres 
located at 306 West Avenue I, bound by West Avenue I on the north, West 
Avenue J on the south, South Davis Street on the east, and Hughes Street 
on the west. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At their meeting on July 
11, 2019, the Historic Preservation Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of this Historic Landmark Designation. At their meeting on September 20, 
2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
this zoning change, and Staff concurs with both recommendations. 
 

12. Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of Sundin Addition (Park Place 
Subdivision, Phase II), a replat of Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block 1, Park Place 
Subdivision, Phase I, to consolidate three lots into two lots at 1720 Landmark 
Drive, on the west side of Landmark Drive, south of Hastings Road. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At their meeting on 
September 20, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of this replat, and Staff concurs. 

 
FY 2020 Budget 
 
13. Conduct a public hearing on the proposed 2019 Property Tax Rate used for 

the FY 2020 Annual Budget. 
 
 The State’s truth-in-taxation statutes specify that a proposed ad valorem tax rate 

which exceeds the lower of the effective rate or the rollback rate requires additional 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 27, 2019 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

steps before the rate may be adopted. Although the proposed tax rate of $0.6598 is 
unchanged from the current year, anything above the effective rate of $0.6178 is 
considered a “tax increase.” This public hearing is the first of two required by State 
law.   

 
14. Call for a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 

p.m., at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander, for the City of Belton 
Budget for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2019, and ending September 30, 
2020. 

 
We are recommending that the Council set Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 
p.m., for the required public hearing on the FY2020 Budget. 
 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



WHEREAS, an estimated fewer than 1,000 cases worldwide have been diagnosed and many are 
undiagnosed with Lissencephaly, a condition that is characterized by agyria or 
pachygyria, which means absence or incomplete development of the brain gyri or 
convolution, causing the brain's surface to appear unusually smooth; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Lissencephaly is a chronic condition that may cause epilepsy, muscle spasms, partial or 

complete paralysis, low vision and severe medical complications, and patients with this 
condition have to live with continued therapies and medical expenses; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it may take years to receive a diagnosis, and medical professionals frequently are 

inadequately educated on the diagnosis and treatment of Lissencephaly; and, 
 
WHEREAS, increased awareness and expanded knowledge of the realities of life with Lissencephaly 

will allow the community at large to better support people who struggle with the 
challenges of this condition; and, 

 
WHEREAS, We Are R.A.R.E., a nonprofit organization, is urging Lissencephaly patients and their 

supporters, healthcare providers, and the general public to demonstrate their caring by 
sharing the road patients walk, the facts about Lissencephaly, and ever-growing 
awareness about the etiology of this disorder and potential treatments; and, 

 
WHEREAS the community’s focus on Lissencephaly and its impact on patients’ lives will help 

guarantee hope for a better future for people with Lissencephaly. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, MARION GRAYSON, Mayor of the City of Belton, Texas, recognize the needs 

of these people, and do hereby declare September 8, 2019, as 
 

Lissencephaly Awareness Day 
 

in the City of Belton, and urge all of our citizens to support the search for a cure and 
assistance for those individuals and families who deal with this condition daily. 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set 
my hand, and have caused the Official Seal of 
the City of Belton, Texas, to be affixed this the 
27th day of August, 2019. 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson, Guy 
O’Banion, Dan Kirkley and John R. Holmes, Sr. Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene 
Ellis, John Messer, Amy Casey, Susan Allamon, Chris Brown, Paul Romer, Bob van Til, 
Angellia Points, Charlotte Walker, Bruce Pritchard, Judy Garrett, Cynthia Hernandez, 
Kim Kroll and Tina Moore. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Mayor Marion Grayson, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Grants and Special Projects 
Coordinator Bob van Til. The Invocation was given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate 
Pastor of Fellowship Baptist Church. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments. Pastor Gary Kent, 700 S. Main Street, said he is the Senior 

Pastor of Central Texas Cathedral Worship Center which is the former Calvary 
Baptist Church. He wanted the Council to know that he and his congregation are 
willing to help the community in whatever manner is needed. 

 
City Manager Sam Listi introduced Tina Moore. Mrs. Moore replaced Kelly Atkinson as 
a Planner in the Planning Department. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of July 23, 2019, City Council meeting. 
 
4. Consider appointments to the following Boards and Commissions: 
 

A. Library Board of Directors – appointment of Kari Martin, Janice Pustka, Peggy 
Williams and Jennifer Watson. 

B. Housing Board of Adjustment – appointment of Timothy Watson. 
 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended Interlocal 

Agreement between the City of Belton and the Belton Independent School 
District for the School Resource Officer Program.   

 
6. Consider a resolution authorizing the submittal of an application to the Texas 

Department of Transportation for the Safe Routes to School Grant. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 2 
 

  

Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter, 
the Consent Agenda, including the following captioned resolution, was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-19-R 
 
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING “W. AVENUE H AND S. PEARL SIDEWALK SAFE 
ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT” APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION’S 2019 TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES SET-ASIDE 
(TASA) / SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL-INFRASTRUCTURE (SRTS) CALL FOR 
PROJECTS  
 
Miscellaneous 
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with RT 

Schneider Construction for construction of the E. 24th Avenue Extension 
Project, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the 
amount authorized under State law. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points reminded Council that in May 2018, the City 
purchased 83 acres to expand Heritage Park. The agreement required that the City 
extend E. 24th Avenue to provide connectivity to the adjacent land not purchased by 
the City. Staff identified E. 24th Avenue as the road to be extended into the new 
parkland with new street connections to River Oaks Drive and future Park Lane, 
which will connect to the Gated River One LLC, property.  
 
Mrs. Points said the project was designed in-house, but it still required some 
expenditures which included: 
 
• Survey provided by All County Survey $7,900 
• CAD Services provided by Turley Associates $20,000 
• Geotechnical Engineering provided by Langerman Foster Engineering $5,100 
• Construction Staking and Cut Sheets to be provided by Turley Associates $9,500 
• Totaling $42,500 
 
Points explained that the project includes approximately 1,600 LF of 31-foot (back of 
curb to back of curb) roadway, 1,200 of 8-inch waterline, fire hydrants, water 
connections, one street light at the intersection of E. 24th Avenue and River Oaks 
Drive, stormwater piping, erosion control, traffic control, and signage including 
Heritage Park directional signage on SH317/N Main Street and within the 
neighborhood leading into Heritage Park.  

 
On July 18, 2019, seven (7) bids were received for the project. The Director of Public 
Works/City Engineer and the Assistant Director of Public Works evaluated the bids 
received. RT Schneider Construction’s last project for the City of Belton was the 
Sparta Roadway Extension project in 2004. Although the City of Belton has not 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 3 
 

  

worked with RT Schneider recently, they have worked with and for the City of 
Temple, UMHB, City of Harker Heights, KPA, Turley Associates, etc. After speaking 
with a few references, it was apparent that RT Schneider has the capabilities and 
quality of work to successfully construct the E. 24th Avenue Extension Project. The 
construction is estimated to take approximately eight months and will cost 
$557,352.85. Funding is allocated in the TIRZ Fund.  
 
Mayor Grayson asked about the light proposed for E. 24th Avenue at River Oaks. 
Mrs. Points explained that it is a street light and not a traffic light. 
 
Councilmember Leigh asked if there is a plan to cross the river or to secure right-of-
way for a future connection to IH-35 from the hammerhead at E. 24th. Mrs. Points 
said that it could be done since the City owns land in each direction from the 
hammerhead which will allow flexibility for alignment. Mrs. Points and 
Councilmember Leigh agreed that a Thoroughfare Plan amendment would be 
beneficial. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember Pearson, 
Item #7 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

8. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Smith 
Contracting for construction of the Shady Lane Sewer Interceptor Project, and 
any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under State law. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points said the City received three (3) Community 
Development Block Grants (CDBGs) to construct three separate sections of the 
sewer line between the Public Works office area to, and just south of, the City’s main 
lift station that pumps all of the City’s sewer to the Temple-Belton Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. About half of Belton’s sewer is sent through the Miller Heights area, 
and a majority of the sewer flows down the Shady Lane sewer line. The sewer from 
Three Creeks is also sent through this area. Mrs. Points explained that with the most 
recent CDBG project completed in 2016, the 12” sewer line was paralleled with a 
new 21” sewer line, which now has a capacity of 12.95 MGD near Shady Lane/Belle 
Oaks Apartments and 15.19 MGD near the lift station. The 2011 CDBG project 
replaced an existing 12” with a 15” and 12” line ranging in capacity downstream of 
7.1 MGD to 1.33 MGD upstream near Magnolia. The South Belton Sewer System 
(SBSS) Project will connect into the sewer on Shady Lane. The SBSS is designed 
for 7.75 MGD of sewer, including the 1.8 MGD build out of Three Creeks. Therefore, 
the sewer line along Shady Lane between the Public Works facility and Belle Oaks 
Apartments needs to be increased in size or paralleled to prevent overflows form 
occurring in the future as development continues.  
 
In February 2018, the City entered into a professional services contract with Halff 
Associates to design the Shady Lane sewer project. They evaluated replacing the 
2011 CDBG sewer line or installing a parallel interceptor. After much deliberation, 
Halff and Staff agreed it was more cost effective and was less disruptive to the 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 4 
 

  

customers on Shady Lane for the City to install a true sewer interceptor (24” to 30” in 
diameter) in Shady Lane in order to carry the flows from Three Creeks and South 
Belton. The fully-developed flows through this sewer line interceptor are projected to 
be 12.7 MGD, which includes flows from existing Miller Heights area, a future BISD 
school site, South Belton Sewer, and taking two lift stations.  
 
Mrs. Points said the design was completed in March 2019, and TCEQ provided their 
approval of the project in late May. The project was advertised in June and bid on 
July 23, 2019. The project was bid with two alternative bids. Alternative Bid 1 
accounts for the addition of an 8” waterline between the Public Works yard and 
Shady Lane. Alternative Bid 2 accounts for coating each of the proposed manholes. 
  
Five (5) bids were received for the project. The Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer, the Assistant Director of Public Works, and Halff Associates evaluated the 
bids received. The low bidder, MA Smith Contracting (Smith) of Austin, successfully 
constructed Sparta Road Improvements, including the roundabout. Also, Halff 
Associates has worked with Smith on numerous projects. After review of the bids, 
Halff and Staff recommend proceeding with Smith’s base bid and Alternative Bid 2 
(manhole coatings). Alternative Bid 1 is not recommended for award since the 
waterline price is higher than expected and is not a critical need. Construction is 
estimated to take six months, and the total cost of the base bid plus Alternative Bid 2 
is $1,083,887.70. Funding is allocated in the 2016 Water and Sewer Bond Fund. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, Item #8 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with American 
Medical Response Ambulance Services, Inc. (AMR), for the provision of 
emergency medical services within the City. 
 
City Manager Sam Listi said the proposed agreement between AMR and the City of 
Belton is the result of negotiations between the parties over the last several months, 
following a Management recommendation to Council on June 11, 2019, to contract 
out EMS services in the City. This recommendation was not made lightly, given the 
legacy of outstanding, directly provided services in Belton for decades, but with all 
prudence, given the documented challenges of revenue and staffing in the Belton 
Fire Department over the last fifteen months.  
 
Mr. Listi said that an initial trial period began on April 1, 2019, in which AMR served 
as backup to a reduced fleet of one operating City ambulance. Staff has come to the 
conclusion that outsourced EMS service is the only practical response for 
sustainable EMS service delivery at this time. Mr. Listi said a Fire Department Model 
was proposed to the Council in June, with AMR providing EMS and the City of 
Belton providing a Paramedic Engine Company for Priority 1 calls and all other fire 
and emergency service response. The Agreement with AMR is for one year, with 
two 1-year renewal options, leaving the opportunity for the Council to revisit this 
decision in the future. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 5 
 

  

Summary of Agreement Terms 
 
• Term: One year, with two 1-year renewal options 
• Personnel: Two - 1 paramedic and 1 EMT on each ambulance 
• Response Time: Not to exceed an average of 7.5 minutes 
• Ambulance/Stretchers:  

- City vehicles (3) branded “Belton EMS” 
- Leased to AMR at $2,100 per month ($700 each) 
- Housed at two fire stations 

• Crew Quarters at Stations: Lease payment to COB of $1,600 per month ($800 
each) 

• Ambulance Rates: 

 
 

AMR may increase rates yearly on the contract anniversary date not to exceed the 
percentage increase in the Medical CPI during the most recent 12-month period for 
which published figures are available from the U.S Department of Labor. Mr. Listi 
explained the contract will provide a net positive of approximately $94,235 with the 
elimination of $614,235 in EMS expenditures and the offset of $520,000 in lost 
ambulance revenue. 
 
Councilmember Holmes questioned the staffing of up to eight firefighters per shift 
across three shifts, saying that all the illustrations show six firefighters. Mr. Listi said 
eight firefighters will be scheduled, but that level of staffing allows the flexibility for 
time off or training. He said the minimum staffing per shift would be six. Mr. Holmes 
asked if six firefighters was adequate for fighting fires. Mr. Listi said, “We believe that 
it is adequate at this time, but it can always be supplemented in the future.” He 
added that for major incidents, the City will rely on mutual aid to supplement the 
City’s resources. Mr. Holmes asked if the City was fully staffed now, how many 
firefighters would be on shift. Mr. Listi said there would be four with two on the 
ambulance and two on the fire truck. He added that in the past, the firefighters on 
the ambulance were available for fighting fires unless they were transporting a 
patient to the hospital, then they were out of the City and unavailable. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 6 
 

  

Councilmember Leigh asked how many firefighters were added when the second 
station was built. Mr. Listi said six positions were added at that time. Mr. Leigh said 
that what is being proposed now is more coverage than what the City had 15 years 
ago.  
 
Mr. Listi added that ISO was brought up the last time this topic was discussed. He 
said that EMS service has no bearing on the City’s ISO rating.  
 
Councilmember O’Banion asked how the AMR rates compare with the surrounding 
cities who have privatized their EMS services. Mr. Listi said the proposed rates are 
the same as those in the other cities. Mr. Robert Saunders of AMR said it is the 
same rates as Bell County and the City of Temple, but the rates for the City of Waco 
are a little different due to the number of ambulances Waco has. 
 
Councilmember Holmes asked who is going to staff football games. AMR will staff 
the ambulance at the football games. 
 
Councilmember Leigh said the contract with AMR is a good step, and the Council 
has the flexibility to review it each year to see if it needs to continue. 
 
Mr. Listi said that Staff has been pleased with the services provided by AMR thus 
far. Mayor Grayson added that it has been a tough year with the loss of the 
paramedics. She was not in favor of going with an outside ambulance service, but 
she felt there was no other option. She asked if it was easier to hire just firefighters 
or if there will be a problem filling the one vacancy. Fire Chief Pritchard said he 
thinks it will be easier to hire firefighter/EMTs. He said the City will still have the 
option of sending the existing personnel to paramedic school. 
 
Councilmember Kirkley said that some smaller cities in the region have no EMS 
service at all, and while this isn’t necessarily the Council’s first choice, he believes 
that it is the right choice for now. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion said he has a minor concern about recruitment. Mr. Listi 
said the department will continually test to create the list to draw from in order to 
maintain the 24 firefighters. 
 
Councilmember Carpenter said he appreciates Staff working through this issue as 
the Council wants the very best for the citizens of Belton.  
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter, and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, Item #9 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
FY 2020 Budget 
 
10. Presentation of proposed FY2020 Ad Valorem Tax Rate. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 7 
 

  

Interim Director of Finance Susan Allamon presented a comparison of the FY2019 
vs. FY2020 certified tax roll. She said the FY2020 total market value increased 
approximately $298.7M over FY2019, and the taxable value increased 
approximately $146.7M. She also discussed the historical ad valorem tax rate data. 
The highest tax rate in the last 15 years was $0.7350 in 2004. She said that the 
FY2020 Non-TIRZ growth is 9.74% and the annualized growth has been 5.81% 
since the creation of the TIRZ. 
 
Allamon reviewed the definitions of the various tax rates including the effective tax 
rate and the rollback tax rate. She also presented the effective rate ($0.6178), the 
current rate ($0.6598) and two options for the rollback rate. She explained that the 
rollback tax rate calculation splits the tax rate into two separate components: the 
maintenance and operations rate and the debt service rate. The rollback rate is the 
effective M&O rate times 1.08 plus debt service rate. She added that the adoption of 
a tax rate above the rollback rate could trigger an election if petitioned by 10% of 
registered voters.  
 
Mrs. Allamon said that in one option the City is buying down the debt service rate by 
using Debt Service Fund fund balance. This allows the City to increase the M&O 
rate to be able to fund more maintenance and operations projects. Should the 
Council choose not to buy down the debt service rate, then the tax rates would be 
those in the second option. 
 
Budget FY 2020 FY 2019
Comparison of Tax Rates $0.6598 $0.6178 $0.6598 $0.6599 $0.6809

Current Rate Effective Rate Current Rate Rollback Rate Full DS Rollback

Taxable Value $1,120,153,343 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635

O&M Tax Rate $0.5650 $0.5292 $0.5712 $0.5713 $0.5713
Debt Service Tax Rate $0.0948 $0.0886 $0.0886 $0.0886 $0.1096
Total Tax Rate $0.6598 $0.6178 $0.6598 $0.6599 $0.6809
Change from current rate ($0.0420) $0.0000 $0.0001 $0.0211

Total Tax Levy $7,390,772 $7,826,622 $8,358,700 $8,359,967 $8,626,006
Estimated Collections - 97% $7,169,049 $7,591,823 $8,107,939 $8,109,168 $8,367,226
General Fund
Current Ad Valorem $6,139,000 $6,503,064 $7,019,180 $7,020,409 $7,020,409
Payment to TIRZ ($751,528) ($965,227) ($1,041,832) ($1,042,015) ($1,042,015)
Net General Fund Current AV Taxes $5,387,472 $5,537,837 $5,977,348 $5,978,394 $5,978,394
Debt Service
Current Ad Valorem $1,030,048 $1,088,759 $1,088,759 $1,088,759 $1,346,817
Payment to TIRZ ($126,097) ($161,601) ($161,601) ($161,601) ($199,903)
Net DS Current AV Taxes $903,951 $927,159 $927,159 $927,159 $1,146,914

Each $1M of Tax Value@97% $6,400 $5,993 $6,400 $6,401 $6,605
Penny Tax @ 97% Collection $108,655 $122,885 $122,885 $122,885 $122,885
Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ $95,353 $104,645 $104,645 $104,645 $104,645

Value of Average Home in Belton $164,329 $177,118 $177,118 $177,118 $177,118
Tax on Average Home $1,084 $1,094 $1,169 $1,169 $1,206
Change from current year $10 $85 $85 $122

FY 2020

 
Mrs. Allamon also discussed the potential effects of SB2 on the City’s ad valorem 
tax rate next year which caps tax revenue at 3.5%. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 8 
 

  

 
Councilmember Holmes said the TIRZ Fund has grown dramatically to where it is 
about 20% of the budget, but it doesn’t pay for Police, Fire, EMS, street 
maintenance, etc. He believes that it “hamstrings” the M&O portion of the General 
Fund somewhat. He added that in the past, the City has increased the M&O rate by 
buying down the debt service, and this year’s proposal repeats that, lowering it even 
further to $0.0886. He is concerned that at some point in time, the City will have to 
make up the full debt service. It will dramatically increase the M&O and possibly 
cause a large tax increase. He said he is against hypothetically inflating the M&O. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion said he thought the plan was not to repeat that scenario 
again. Mr. Listi said that this has been the debt strategy that has been discussed for 
some time. The question has been how much it will take to make it work. Mrs. 
Allamon said that this is the last year that a debt service buy-down is anticipated.  
 
Councilmember Leigh said that there has not been an option presented that keeps 
the Debt Service tax rate the same as the current and the M&O tax rate the same as 
the current. He said the proposed rate is the same top line tax rate, but it is not the 
current component rates. The O&M rate is increasing, and the Debt Service rate is 
decreasing. He said it was a good strategy to move forward in prior years, but he 
thinks it has gone far enough. He said there hasn’t been a rate presented that he 
would vote in favor of. 
 
Mr. Listi explained that the $0.6598 proposed rate puts the maximum amount 
possible into O&M, and it gives the City the flexibility to do the things that have been 
discussed including the pay increases and increased street maintenance. Mr. Leigh 
said, “When we discussed doing some of those things, we were using the 97% 
collection as the money we were going to use. We weren’t talking about moving it 
from debt service.” Mr. Listi said the 97% is included in the proposed budget. He 
added that it might be valuable to go through the clean-up budget item before 
deciding upon the proposed tax rate. 
 
Mayor Grayson said the reason the City adopted this scenario in the past was to 
keep the overall tax rate the same while allowing the City to purchase the expansion 
to Heritage Park. Mr. Leigh said he agreed with it the last two years, and he added 
that he also wants to get to the point of “pay as you go.” However, he thinks the City 
has paid down the Debt Service as far as he is willing to go. Otherwise, the City may 
never get to the point of being able to cash fund projects. 
 
No action was required by the Council on this item. 

 
11. Conduct Clean-up Budget Workshop. 
 

Interim Director of Finance Susan Allamon presented a cleanup of the proposed 
FY2020 budget as shown in Exhibit “A.” 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 9 
 

  

Mayor Grayson asked how much 1% in additional collections will generate. Mrs. 
Allamon said approximately $63,500. Staff conservatively recommends 97% even 
though collections are between 97% and 98%. 
 
Councilmember Leigh believes that when the City first presented the buy down of 
the Debt Service rate, he saw different numbers. He asked, “This puts us further 
away from pay as you go, correct?” Mrs. Allamon said, “It does.” Mr. Leigh said the 
buy down proposed for this year compared to last year is shifting a burden of 
approximately $78,000 from the General Fund into the Debt Service Fund, and that 
amount will have to be made up next year. He said, “We are shifting the burden from 
this year to next year, and that is why I cannot vote for the current proposed rate.” 
 
Councilmember Pearson said, “We need to maximize the M&O since we will be 
constrained next year.” Mr. Leigh said that has been done the last couple of years. 
Mr. Listi said, “We will be constrained at 3.5% next year not knowing how much 
growth we will have, so we are taking the rate up to almost the maximum amount 
possible in order to give us flexibility.” Councilmember O’Banion asked how adopting 
the proposed rate will help the City. “Is it basically going to raise our starting point for 
next year?” Mr. Listi and Mrs. Allamon said yes. Councilmember Pearson said this is 
most likely the last time the City will have the opportunity to do this.  
 
Mr. Listi said, “Essentially we are using our savings in order to avoid a tax increase.” 
Mr. Leigh said, “We are not avoiding a tax increase. We are moving numbers to 
allow for a maximum increase without having voter input.” Councilmember Holmes 
agreed with Mr. Leigh and added, “We are arbitrarily raising our M&O.” Mr. Leigh 
said, “That’s fine. We’ve done that a couple of years now, and I believe it is a good 
strategy, but all it does is shift the burden forward.” Mr. O’Banion said, “We are 
playing with the numbers in order to put ourselves in the best possible position for 
next year.” 
 
Councilmember Leigh said, “Why not just go up on the tax rate?” Mr. Listi 
responded, “Council has provided direction throughout the entire budget process to 
maintain the same bottom line tax rate. In order to do that, we’ve put as much as 
possible into the M&O in order to address the multiple challenges before us.” Mr. 
Leigh said there was originally $140,000 - $150,000 discussed, and now there is an 
additional $78,000. He asked why the numbers changed and asked what the money 
was being spent on. Mrs. Allamon said, “The Civil Service adjustment went up an 
additional $62,000 from the June presentation, and there was additional funding for 
street maintenance.” Mr. Leigh said that when Council first looked at this, it was 
estimated there would be an additional $150,000 when the tax roll was certified. He 
said he doesn’t remember a discussion about another $78,000 being needed. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion said he agrees with the Staff’s recommendation in order 
to put the City in the best possible position. He added that he also wants to get to a 
“pay as you go” system in the near future as recommended by Mr. Leigh. He thought 
he remembered a conversation with the former Director of Finance about this 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 10 
 

  

strategy of buying down the debt service rate coming to end possibly in this 
proposed budget. 
 
Mr. Listi said Staff has taken direction from the Council and has tried to build a 
budget around the available dollars, staying within the bottom line tax rate and 
maximizing M&O to allow flexibility. He added that it does require a contribution to 
debt service in order to stay at the same tax rate. 
 
Councilmember Leigh said his direction was to stay within the same tax rate and go 
with the increased appraised values to do some initiatives. “I was very clear that I 
think this has been a good strategy, but I cannot support it again. I said it then, and 
I’ll say it now. I have not changed my mind or my input at all.” 
 
Mr. Listi said Staff’s recommendation is for Council to adopt a bottom line tax rate of 
$0.6598 with an O&M rate of $0.5712 and a debt service rate of $0.0886. 
 
Councilmember Holmes asked about Civil Service pay, specifically about the entry 
level pay. He said the entry levels seem to have a much lower increase than the 
more seasoned ranks. His concern is that the entry rate be competitive since he’s 
heard of area cities increasing their salaries as well. Mr. Listi said Staff recognizes 
that it is a moving target, but the increases have made us more competitive moving 
from 84.5% of market to 93.2% of market. Listi said it is a good first step, but Council 
has agreed to review compensation each year. Mr. Holmes said the increase is 
misleading since certification pay was rolled into the starting pay. Director of Human 
Resources Charlotte Walker said that the consultant did not take certification pay 
into consideration when studying the market since certification varies widely from 
city to city. Councilmember O’Banion added that our entry level pay was more 
competitive than the seasoned ranks in the initial study. Fire Chief Pritchard agreed 
that the entry level pay is still fairly competitive compared to area cities. 
 
Councilmember Holmes said he spoke with a resident of Mesquite Road and asked 
if he thought spending $400,000 on a drainage project in the area was wise. The 
resident said that another property owner constructed a dam on their property, and 
the dam was partly responsible for the drainage issues that were occurring. Mr. 
Holmes said he doesn’t think the Mesquite Road drainage project is a good idea. 
However, he added that he is in favor of the $0.50 increase in the Drainage Fee. Mr. 
Listi assured the Council that each project will reviewed in greater detail before 
committing to spend any funds. 
 
Councilmember Holmes asked if the Standpipe project will be completed in FY2020. 
Mr. Listi said that it will be a multi-year project. Mr. Listi said there is money 
budgeted in Hotel/Motel and TIRZ for the project in FY2020. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter asked if TIRZ funds will be available to help with the 
Mesquite Road drainage project if the City chooses to fund the project. Mrs. Allamon 
said Staff will review the project to determine if any of it is allowed to be funded by 
TIRZ, and if so, it will be allocated appropriately. Mr. Listi said the TIRZ has been 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 11 
 

  

very valuable to the City, allowing the completion of projects that otherwise may not 
have been funded. He added that there are options for the TIRZ in the future with 
the expiration of the current TIRZ in 2024. Mr. Leigh agreed that the TIRZ has been 
very beneficial for the City.  
 
Councilmember Leigh asked, “What is the maximum tax rate we can collect?” Mrs. 
Allamon said taking the M&O rate all the way to the rollback rate, and adding the full 
debt service rate without the buy down will allow for a maximum rate of $0.6809. Mr. 
Leigh said this rate will protect the City the most in future years. However, he said he 
would recommend keeping the rates the same as they are currently. Mr. O’Banion 
asked where the money for the initiatives would come from if the City maintained the 
current rates. He said he likes the proposed budget, and he thinks the initiatives are 
important. He added that the City could transfer money from fund balance to cover 
the initiatives if the current tax rate was maintained. 
 
Councilmember Kirkley said the City has faced some pretty significant challenges. 
He said Staff has provided an incredible response to what has been asked of them. 
He added that the Council made it clear to maintain the tax rate, and with the 
uncertainty of the future, the Staff proposed rates seem to be the most appropriate. 
 
There was no action required of Council on this item. 
 

12. Conduct vote by the City Council to place a proposal to adopt a tax rate for 
Fiscal Year 2020 on the Tuesday, September 17, 2019, agenda.  

 
Councilmember Kirkley made a motion to place a proposal to adopt an ad valorem 
tax rate of $0.6598 ($0.5712 O&M, $0.0886 Debt Service) on the agenda for the 
September 17, 2019, Special Called City Council meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter and required a roll call vote. 
 
Councilmember Pearson said since he’s been on Council he has taken a stand to 
not increase taxes until all other avenues have been exhausted. He said the Council 
is taking a prudent step by maintaining the tax rate, buying down the debt service 
while the opportunity is available, all while leaving sufficient cash balance for future 
debt service. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter said he agrees with Mr. Pearson, and he added that Staff 
has worked hard to provide recommendations for making employee compensation 
more competitive, and he appreciates that. 
 

 
City Council 

 
For 

 
Against 

Present 
and Not                                                                                    
Voting 

 
Absent 

Mayor Marion Grayson X    
Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter X    
Councilmember David K. Leigh  X   



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 12 
 

  

Councilmember Craig Pearson X    
Councilmember Dan Kirkley X    
Councilmember Guy O’Banion X    
Councilmember John R. Holmes, Sr.  X   
Councilmember Craig Pearson X    

 
13. Call for two public hearings on a proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2020 to be 

held on Tuesday, August 27, 2019, and Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 
p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street. 
 
Councilmember Kirkley made a motion to set Tuesday, August 27, 2019, and 
Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 p.m., at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. 
Alexander, for the public hearings on the proposed ad valorem tax rate. The motion 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter and carried unanimously upon a vote of 
7-0. 
 

14. Receive a presentation and discuss amendments to the City of Belton Fee and 
Rate Schedule for FY2020. 
 
City Clerk Amy Casey presented proposed changes to the FY2019 Fee and Rate 
Schedule. Highlighted changes include: 

 
• Eliminating Late Fees for Print Books and Audio Books 
• Increasing the cost of a Certificate of Occupancy 
• Adding Accessory Buildings and distinguishing between those with Electrical, 

Plumbing, Etc. and without 
• Adding a Fine for Working without a Building Permit 
• Increasing the Clean-Up Deposit for Park Events 
• Adding a section for Splash Pad Pavilion Rentals 
• Adding a Military Discount for Harris Center Rentals 
• Increasing the Residential Drainage Fee by 50 cents 
• Replacing the Emergency Medical Services rates with AMR contract rates 
• Adding Administrative Approval Fee for zoning variance requests 
• Adding the Historic Landmark Medallion Application Fee 
• Adding the Historic Placard Program Application Fee 
 
Councilmember Holmes asked if there was currently a fine for working without a 
Building Permit. Councilmember Pearson said a Stop Order is issued, and Mr. Listi 
added that the project is red tagged until a permit is issued. 
 
Mayor Grayson asked for clarification on the Splash Pad Rental. Director of Parks 
and Recreation Matt Bates assured the Council that the rental fee was for the rental 
of the pavilions in the area for certain time blocks. He added that there will still be 
public availability of the splash pads. Mrs. Grayson asked that the presentation and 
Fee Schedule be revised to clarify that point. Councilmember Holmes asked about 
the deposit, and Mr. Bates said that a $100 clean up deposit will be required. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 13, 2019 – Page 13 
 

  

Mrs. Grayson added she would like to know if the $100 application fees for the 
Historic programs slows down the applications. 
 
No action was required of the Council on this item. 

 
15. Receive a presentation on the FY2020 – FY2024 Strategic Plan and invite 

public input on September 10, 2019. 
 

City Manager Sam Listi gave a presentation on the goals and objectives of the 
Strategic Plan (see Exhibit “B”). Mr. Listi stated the Strategic Plan will be considered 
for adoption at the September 17th Special Called City Council meeting in 
conjunction with budget adoption, and he recommended the Council receive public 
input on September 10, 2019. 
 
Councilmember Leigh said the future of the TIRZ is more than just boundaries. In 
speaking with Bell County Judge David Blackburn, he said there are several options 
available for the future of this TIRZ or creation of a new TIRZ. He said the language 
shown in the Strategic Plan needs some modification to emphasize all the options 
available. 
 
Mr. Leigh advocated that the Boards and Commissions training be more proactive in 
engaging the Council with the Boards and Commission, and suggested adding a 
Council liaison to each. 
 
Councilmember Pearson said the Strategic Plan process is still the best process he 
has ever seen. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 



CL
EA

N
-U

P 
BU

D
G

ET
Fi

sc
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

A
ug

us
t 

1
3
, 
2
0
1
9

EXHIBIT "A"



G
EN

ER
A

L 
FU

N
D

Fi
sc

a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

C
le

a
n-

up
 B

ud
g
e
t



RE
VE

N
U

ES

A
d

 V
a

lo
re

m
 T

a
x
 R

e
ve

nu
e


C

e
rt

if
ie

d
 t

a
x
 r

o
ll 

ca
m

e
 i
n 

hi
g
he

r 
th

a
n 

e
st

im
a
te

d


R
e
co

m
m

e
nd

 i
nc

re
a
si
ng

 t
he

 M
&

O
 R

a
te

 t
o
 $

0
.5

7
1

2
 


N

e
t 
G

F 
A

d
 V

a
lo

re
m

 r
e
ve

nu
e
 i
n 

e
x
ce

ss
 o

f 
6
/
2
5
/
1
9
 p

re
se

nt
a
ti
o
n 

is
 $

1
7
4
,4

0
8

S
a

le
s 

Ta
x
 R

e
ve

nu
e


Fo

re
ca

st
e
d
 s

a
le

s 
ta

x
 r

e
ve

nu
e
 i
nc

re
a
se

 d
ri
ve

n 
b
y
 s

tr
o
ng

 s
a
le

s 
ta

x
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

o
nt

h 
o
f 

M
a
y


S
a
le

s 
ta

x
 r

e
ve

nu
e
 i
n 

e
x
ce

ss
 o

f 
6
/
2
5
/
1
9
 p

re
se

nt
a
ti
o
n 

is
 $

4
0
,2

3
0
 


A

d
d
it
io

na
l 
re

ve
nu

e
 i
d
e
nt

if
ie

d
 s

in
ce

 J
un

e
 p

re
se

nt
a
ti
o
n:

 $
2
1
4
,6

3
8



PE
RS

O
N

N
EL

 I
N

IT
IA

TI
VE

S:
 C

IV
IL

 S
ER

VI
CE

C
o
m

p
e
ns

a
ti
o
n 

S
tu

d
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

ul
y
 3

1
, 
2
0
1
9


Ex

is
ti
ng

 p
a
y
 s

ca
le

 i
s 

a
t 
7
2

-8
7
%

 o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t


M

a
rk

e
t 
is

 t
he

 a
ve

ra
g
e
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
a

ra
to

r 
&

 C
o
m

p
e
ti
to

r 
ci

ti
e
s


R
e
co

m
m

e
nd

e
d

 g
ui

d
e
p

o
st

s 
o
f 

9
0

%
, 
9

5
%

 a
nd

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

m
a

rk
e
t 
p

a
y


R
e
vi

se
d
 p

a
y
 s

ca
le

 p
ro

p
o
sa

l 
in

cr
e
a
se

s 
o
ve

ra
ll 

P
D

 &
 F

D
 s

a
la

ry
 e

x
p
e
ns

e
 b

y
 6

.4
8

%


Ju

ne
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
w

a
s 

fo
r 

5
.0

1
%

A
d
d
it
io

na
l 
C

iv
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

ha
ng

e
s 

a
s 

p
ro

p
o
se

d
 i
n 

Ju
ne


In

cl
ud

e
 E

M
T 

ce
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n 

p
a
y
 i
n 

b
a

se
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

FD


In

cr
e
a
se

 F
D

 M
a
st

e
r,
 A

d
va

nc
e
d
 a

nd
 I
nt

e
rm

e
d
ia

te
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

a
y


R
e
m

o
ve

 Y
e
a
r 

1
7
 &

 1
9
 f

ro
m

 P
a
tr

o
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

sc
a
le


A

d
d
 F

D
 C

a
d
e
t 
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

p
o
te

nt
ia

l 
fu

tu
re

 u
se


R
e
vi

se
d
 F

D
 S

ta
ff

in
g
 t
o
 2

4
 F

F
s 

b
a
se

d
 o

n 
EM

S
 o

ut
so

ur
ci

ng


R
e
m

o
ve

d
 F

D
 I
nt

e
rn

a
l 
A

ff
a

ir
s 

In
ve

st
ig

a
to

r 
ce

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o
n 

p
a
y
 f

ro
m

 s
ca

le



PE
RS

O
N

N
EL

 I
N

IT
IA

TI
VE

S:
 C

IV
IL

 S
ER

VI
CE

Po
lic

e
Ex

is
tin

g 
Sc

al
e

FY
20

 P
ro

po
sa

l
In

cr
ea

se
%

 o
f M

ar
ke

t
Pa

tro
l O

ffi
ce

r Y
ea

r 1
42

,0
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

99
9

$ 
   

   
 

93
.2

%
Sg

t Y
ea

r 1
55

,1
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

,5
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

46
1

$ 
   

   
 

90
.8

%
Li

eu
te

na
nt

 Y
ea

r 1
63

,1
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
67

,5
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

42
9

$ 
   

   
 

93
.1

%
D

ep
ut

y 
C

hi
ef

 Y
ea

r 1
72

,3
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

,2
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
6,

95
9

$ 
   

   
 

91
.4

%

Fi
re

Ex
is

tin
g 

Sc
al

e
FY

20
 P

ro
po

sa
l

In
cr

ea
se

%
 o

f M
ar

ke
t

Fi
re

fig
ht

er
/E

M
T 

Ye
ar

 1
40

,4
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

,7
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
27

2
$ 

   
   

 
93

.2
%

Li
eu

te
na

nt
 Y

ea
r 1

49
,8

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,3

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
9

$ 
   

   
 

91
.3

%
Ca

pt
ai

n 
Ye

ar
 1

56
,7

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
,6

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
5,

88
6

$ 
   

   
 

99
.7

%
As

si
st

an
t F

ire
 C

hi
ef

 Y
ea

r 1
64

,5
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
73

,4
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
86

9
$ 

   
   

 
85

.5
%


2

.5
%

 i
nc

re
a

se
 f

o
r 

y
e
a

r 
st

e
p

s


5

.0
%

 i
nc

re
a

se
 b

e
tw

e
e
n 

ra
n
k 

st
e
p

s


P
ro

p
o
sa

l 
p

a
y
 s

ho
w

n 
a

b
o
ve

 d
o
e
s 

no
t 
in

cl
ud

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

a
y


Y
e
a

r 
1

 P
o
lic

e
 S

g
t
w

it
h 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
: 
$
5
9

,1
4

5


Y
e
a

r 
1

 L
t 
P
a

ra
m

e
d

ic
 w

it
h 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
: 
$
6
0

,9
7

3



PE
RS

O
N

N
EL

 I
N

IT
IA

TI
VE

S 
-

G
EN

ER
A

L 
SE

RV
IC

ES

Im
p

le
m

e
nt

 ¾
 Y

e
a

r 
H

ir
e
 f

o
r 

Tw
o
 P

o
si

ti
o
ns


B
ui

ld
in

g
 I
ns

p
e
ct

o
r 

&
 R

e
cr

e
a
ti
o
n 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r


A

llo
w

s 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
nt

s 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 n

e
e
d
s 

so
o
ne

r


R
e
d
uc

e
s 

fi
sc

a
l 
im

p
a
ct

 o
f 

in
co

rp
o
ra

ti
ng

 t
he

 ‘
ne

w
’ 
co

st
s 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
si
ti
o
ns

 f
o
r 

FY
2
0
2
1
 b

ud
g
e
t

C
o
m

p
e
ns

a
ti
o
n 

S
tu

d
y


3
7
 g

e
ne

ra
l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

b
e
nc

hm
a
rk

 p
o
si
ti
o
ns

 s
ur

ve
y
e
d


Im

p
le

m
e
nt

in
g
 5

2
 o

f 
th

e
 6

4
 p

o
si
ti
o
n 

up
g
ra

d
e
s 

re
co

m
m

e
nd

e
d


A

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s 

w
ill

 s
e
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 p

a
y
 i
nc

re
a
se

s


Es

ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
st

: 
$
2
,5

0
0


C

e
rt

a
in

 p
o
si
ti
o
ns

 n
o
t 
up

g
ra

d
e
d
 d

ue
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

lig
nm

e
nt

 w
it
h 

lik
e
 p

o
si
ti
o
ns

, 
re

co
m

m
e
nd

e
d
 m

id
-p

o
in

t 
w

a
s 

a
b
o
ve

 
su

rv
e
y
e
d
 m

id
-p

o
in

t,
 a

nd
 j
o
b
 d

ut
ie

s 
d
if
fe

re
nt

 t
ha

n 
p
o
si
ti
o
n 

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

ci
ti
e
s



O
VE

RA
LL

 P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 C
O

ST


“B

ur
d

e
n”

 -
C

it
y
 c

o
st

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
nn

e
l 
b

e
y
o
nd

 s
a

la
ry


TM

R
S
: 
8
.8

0
%


FI

C
A

: 
7
.6

5
%


W

o
rk

e
r’
s 

C
o
m

p
e
ns

a
ti
o
n 

In
su

ra
nc

e
: 
1
.5

5
%

 a
ve

ra
g
e


To

ta
l 
b
e
fo

re
 i
ns

ur
a
nc

e
 a

nd
 u

ne
m

p
lo

y
m

e
nt

 t
a
x
: 
1
8
%


C

ur
re

nt
 m

e
d
ic

a
l, 

d
e
nt

a
l 
&

 l
if
e
 i
ns

ur
a
nc

e
 a

nd
 u

ne
m

p
lo

y
m

e
nt

 t
a
x
 c

o
st

: 
$
7
,3

0
0
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e


$
5
0
,0

0
0
 s

a
la

ry
 c

o
st

s 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 $

6
6
,3

0
0
 a

ft
e
r 

b
ur

d
e
n


In

cr
e
a

se
 t
o
 C

iv
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
y
 s

ca
le

: 
$

2
5
1

,9
1

1
 (
1

2
 m

o
nt

hs
)


A

d
d

it
io

n 
o
f 

B
ui

ld
in

g
 I
ns

p
e
ct

o
r 

&
 R

e
cr

e
a

ti
o
n 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r:
 $

7
7
,1

9
7

 (
9

 m
o
nt

hs
)



PR
EV

EN
TA

TI
VE

 S
TR

EE
T 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
CE

 

C
ra

ft
in

g
 a

 s
us

ta
in

a
b
le

 p
la

n


Th

re
e
 y

e
a
r 

fu
nd

in
g
 g

o
a
l 
se

t 
in

 F
Y
 2

0
1
8
 o

f 
$
2
5
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

is
 s

ur
p
a
ss

e
d
 i
n 

FY
2
0
2
0
 w

it
h 

$
3
7
2
,8

7
0
 b

ud
g
e
te

d


FY

 2
0
2
0
 b

ud
g
e
t 

ca
n 

se
rv

e
 a

s 
a
 j
um

p
in

g
-o

ff
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
a
 f

iv
e
 y

e
a
r 

p
la

n 
to

 r
e
a
ch

 $
6
0
0
,0

0
0
 i
n 

a
nn

ua
l, 

b
ud

g
e
te

d
 

p
re

ve
nt

a
ti
ve

 s
tr

e
e
t 

m
a
in

te
na

nc
e
 f

un
d
in

g

2
0
2
0
 f

un
d
in

g
 T

B
I 
-

$
1
6
2
,1

3
0

P
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 G
o
a
ls

B
u
d
g
e
t

Y
e
a
r

M
in

im
u
m

B
u
d
g
e
te

d
 F

u
n
d
in

g

P
la

n
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

s

FY
 2

0
$

3
7

2
,8

7
0

$
5

3
5

,0
0
0

 

FY
 2

1
$

4
0

0
,0

0
0

$
5

5
0

,0
0
0

 

FY
 2

2
$

4
6

0
,0

0
0

$
5

6
5

,0
0
0

 

FY
 2

3
$

5
2

5
,0

0
0

$
5

8
0

,0
0
0

 

FY
 2

4
$

6
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$

6
0

0
,0

0
0

 

Ju
ne

 P
re

se
nt

a
ti
o
n
:

2
0
2
0
 f

un
d
in

g
 T

B
I 
-

$
2
8
5
,0

0
0

$
0

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0

$
3

0
0

,0
0

0

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0

$
5

0
0

,0
0

0

$
6

0
0

,0
0

0

$
7

0
0

,0
0

0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

St
re

et
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 F
u

n
d

in
g 

P
la

n

G
e

n
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g 
To

 B
e

 Id
en

ti
fi

e
d



FY
 2

02
0 

PR
O

PO
SE

D

- G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
-

Es
tim

at
ed

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

5,
08

8,
30

5
$ 

   
   

P
ro

po
se

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s

14
,9

37
,3

19
$ 

  
P

ro
po

se
d 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
(1

4,
93

7,
30

5)
$ 

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ud
ge

t
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

5,
08

8,
31

9
$ 

   
   

Le
ss

:  
M

in
im

um
 B

al
an

ce
 (3

 m
on

th
s 

O
&

M
 B

ud
ge

t)
(3

,5
29

,2
31

)
$ 

   
  

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 in

 E
xc

es
s 

of
 M

in
im

um
1,

55
9,

08
8

$ 
   

   



RE
VE

N
U

ES

*

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
O

 - 
B

ud
ge

t
A 

- B
ud

ge
t

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Pr

op
os

ed
Am

ou
nt

%

A
d 

V
al

or
em

 T
ax

es
$5

,2
12

,6
87

$5
,5

04
,8

72
$5

,5
04

,8
72

$5
,5

25
,1

85
$6

,0
82

,4
28

$5
77

,5
56

10
.4

9%
S

al
es

 T
ax

$3
,5

10
,1

05
$3

,6
32

,0
00

$3
,6

32
,0

00
$3

,5
79

,7
02

$3
,7

63
,1

20
$1

31
,1

20
3.

61
%

Fr
an

ch
is

e 
$1

,2
48

,9
67

$1
,2

02
,0

00
$1

,2
02

,0
00

$1
,2

59
,4

46
$1

,2
59

,4
40

$5
7,

44
0

4.
78

%
O

th
er

 T
ax

es
$4

6,
95

1
$4

0,
00

0
$4

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$1

0,
00

0
25

.0
0%

P
er

m
its

 &
 L

ic
en

se
s

$2
49

,5
97

$2
30

,4
00

$2
30

,4
00

$2
78

,2
50

$2
70

,1
90

$3
9,

79
0

17
.2

7%
M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
ou

rt
$2

80
,7

94
$2

75
,9

00
$2

75
,9

00
$3

67
,1

50
$3

30
,7

50
$5

4,
85

0
19

.8
8%

R
ef

us
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

$1
,4

11
,8

22
$1

,4
80

,3
00

$1
,5

50
,3

00
$1

,5
69

,4
00

$1
,6

42
,5

60
$9

2,
26

0
5.

95
%

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

$1
,1

93
,9

86
$7

50
,0

00
$7

50
,0

00
$5

00
,0

00
$4

5,
00

0
($

70
5,

00
0)

-9
4.

00
%

H
ar

ris
 R

en
ta

l In
co

m
e

$5
1,

04
1

$5
0,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

$7
0,

00
0

$7
0,

00
0

$2
0,

00
0

40
.0

0%
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
 In

co
m

e
$3

9,
06

4
$3

5,
60

0
$3

5,
60

0
$3

6,
78

2
$3

6,
78

0
$1

,1
80

3.
31

%
C

od
e 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
$1

7,
25

1
$4

,2
00

$4
,2

00
$8

,1
25

$4
,2

00
$0

0.
00

%
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

$3
45

,8
04

$3
54

,6
03

$3
54

,6
03

$3
55

,6
09

$3
55

,6
10

$1
,0

07
0.

28
%

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

$2
55

,3
33

$1
75

,0
00

$1
75

,0
00

$2
03

,6
41

$1
75

,0
00

$0
0.

00
%

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

$0
$2

,0
00

$2
,0

00
$2

,0
00

$2
,0

00
$0

0.
00

%
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

$5
9,

06
4

$3
9,

90
0

$3
9,

90
0

$4
7,

00
0

$4
6,

76
0

$6
,8

60
17

.1
9%

Tr
an

sf
er

s
$5

42
,6

61
$6

17
,0

00
$6

17
,0

00
$5

99
,9

44
$6

52
,4

81
$3

5,
48

1
5.

75
%

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

$9
5,

67
6

$1
01

,9
00

$1
01

,9
00

$1
51

,0
00

$1
51

,0
00

$4
9,

10
0

48
.1

8%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
$1

4,
56

0,
80

3.
81

$1
4,

49
5,

67
5

$1
4,

56
5,

67
5

$1
4,

60
3,

23
4

$1
4,

93
7,

31
9

$3
71

,6
44

2.
55

%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t

Ju
ne

 P
re

se
nt

a
ti
o
n
: 
A
V

 T
a

x
: 
$

5
,9

0
8

,0
2
0
  
  
  

  
  
  

S
a

le
s 

Ta
x
: 
$
3
,7

2
2

,8
9
0



Pe
rs

on
ne

l
64

%

Se
rv

ic
es

19
%

Tr
an

sf
er

s
9%R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

a
in

t
4

%

Su
pp

lie
s

3
%

O
th

er
1

%

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

RE
S

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
O

 - 
B

ud
ge

t
A 

- B
ud

ge
t

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Pr

op
os

ed
Am

ou
nt

%

P
er

so
nn

el
$8

,7
78

,6
63

$9
,3

40
,5

84
$9

,3
40

,5
84

$9
,3

40
,5

84
$9

,5
41

,0
69

$2
00

,4
85

2.
15

%
S

up
pl

ie
s

$5
62

,3
24

$5
32

,0
39

$5
03

,0
51

$4
92

,8
89

$4
80

,1
20

($
22

,9
31

)
-4

.5
6%

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

$4
74

,8
64

$5
14

,1
59

$5
04

,5
69

$5
04

,5
00

$5
31

,0
52

$2
6,

48
3

5.
25

%
S

er
vi

ce
s

$2
,5

44
,8

17
$2

,7
79

,1
96

$2
,8

12
,7

69
$2

,7
89

,9
75

$2
,8

83
,7

65
$7

0,
99

6
2.

52
%

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

$0
$1

50
,0

00
$1

50
,0

00
$1

50
,0

00
$1

00
,0

00
($

50
,0

00
)

-3
3.

33
%

Tr
an

sf
er

s
$2

,0
67

,4
26

$1
,0

56
,7

18
$1

,2
27

,2
18

$1
,2

30
,2

18
$1

,2
80

,3
81

$5
3,

16
3

4.
33

%
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
$1

21
,1

81
$1

22
,9

53
$1

22
,9

53
$1

23
,3

25
$1

20
,9

18
($

2,
03

5)
-1

.6
6%

C
ap

ita
l

$1
3,

06
1

$0
$1

0,
00

5
$1

0,
00

5
$0

($
10

,0
05

)
-1

00
.0

0%
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
0.

00
%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$1

4,
56

2,
33

6
$1

4,
49

5,
64

9
$1

4,
67

1,
14

9
$1

4,
64

1,
49

6
$1

4,
93

7,
30

5
$2

66
,1

56
1.

81
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t

Ju
ne

 P
re

se
nt

a
ti
o
n
:

P
e
rs

o
nn

e
l: 

$
9

,4
4

9
,3

0
0

Tr
a

n
sf

e
rs

: 
 $

1
,1

5
7

,5
1
1



EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

RE
S

* *

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
O

 - 
B

ud
ge

t
A 

- B
ud

ge
t

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Pr

op
os

ed
Am

ou
nt

%

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

$9
3,

55
6

$7
4,

56
3

$7
4,

56
3

$7
4,

77
6

$7
8,

21
6

$3
,6

53
4.

90
%

A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n
$4

76
,8

42
$5

19
,9

26
$5

19
,9

26
$5

00
,3

28
$5

31
,6

92
$1

1,
76

6
2.

26
%

Fi
na

nc
e

$3
30

,1
38

$3
44

,4
07

$3
44

,4
07

$3
42

,3
54

$3
52

,9
65

$8
,5

58
2.

48
%

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

$1
86

,4
31

$1
91

,1
90

$1
91

,1
90

$1
92

,4
86

$1
96

,0
61

$4
,8

71
2.

55
%

M
un

i C
ou

rt
$1

80
,4

06
$1

92
,7

90
$1

92
,7

90
$1

97
,2

06
$1

99
,6

34
$6

,8
44

3.
55

%
P

ol
ic

e
$4

,1
02

,0
78

$4
,1

89
,3

78
$4

,1
89

,3
78

$4
,1

78
,9

49
$4

,5
14

,4
79

$3
25

,1
01

7.
76

%
Fi

re
$3

,1
28

,4
87

$3
,1

64
,9

74
$3

,1
64

,9
74

$3
,1

62
,2

38
$2

,7
50

,4
11

($
41

4,
56

3)
-1

3.
10

%
In

fo
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
$1

75
,5

91
$2

35
,1

68
$2

35
,1

68
$2

35
,1

23
$2

39
,5

20
$4

,3
52

1.
85

%
S

tre
et

s
$1

,4
19

,1
75

$1
,1

59
,1

58
$1

,1
59

,1
58

$1
,1

58
,8

90
$1

,3
12

,0
94

$1
52

,9
36

13
.1

9%
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
$1

,1
56

,8
24

$1
,2

14
,0

73
$1

,2
14

,0
73

$1
,2

11
,9

71
$1

,3
26

,7
13

$1
12

,6
40

9.
28

%
P

la
nn

in
g

$3
90

,5
72

$3
99

,3
76

$3
99

,3
76

$3
97

,7
16

$4
55

,8
73

$5
6,

49
7

14
.1

5%
Li

br
ar

y
$3

44
,9

92
$3

60
,5

39
$3

60
,5

39
$3

60
,4

17
$3

57
,7

99
($

2,
74

0)
-0

.7
6%

O
th

er
$6

74
,1

15
$4

47
,9

53
$5

53
,4

53
$5

53
,8

25
$4

27
,3

21
($

12
6,

13
2)

-2
2.

79
%

R
ef

us
e

$1
,2

26
,1

88
$1

,3
01

,0
76

$1
,3

71
,0

76
$1

,3
75

,4
10

$1
,4

49
,9

16
$7

8,
84

0
5.

75
%

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$5
31

,1
79

$5
53

,0
55

$5
53

,0
55

$5
51

,7
84

$5
93

,6
56

$4
0,

60
1

7.
34

%
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
$1

45
,7

62
$1

48
,0

23
$1

48
,0

23
$1

48
,0

23
$1

50
,9

55
$2

,9
32

1.
98

%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$1

4,
56

2,
33

6
$1

4,
49

5,
64

9
$1

4,
67

1,
14

9
$1

4,
64

1,
49

6
$1

4,
93

7,
30

5
$2

66
,1

56
1.

81
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t



D
RA

IN
A

G
E 

FU
N

D
Fi

sc
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

C
le

a
n-

up
 B

ud
g
e
t



FY
 2

02
0 

PR
O

PO
SE

D

- D
ra

in
ag

e 
Fu

nd
 -

Es
tim

at
ed

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

22
3,

31
1

$ 
   

 

P
ro

po
se

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s

53
9,

47
2

$ 
   

 
P

ro
po

se
d 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
(5

70
,8

12
)

$ 
   

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ud
ge

t
(3

1,
34

0)
$ 

   
  

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

19
1,

97
1

$ 
   

 

Le
ss

:  
M

in
im

um
 B

al
an

ce
 (3

 m
on

th
s 

O
&

M
 B

ud
ge

t)
(8

2,
29

4)
$ 

   
  

Le
ss

:  
A

nn
ua

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

(2
5,

60
7)

$ 
   

  

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 in

 E
xc

es
s 

of
 M

in
im

um
84

,0
70

$ 
   

   
 



RE
VE

N
U

ES


P
ro

p
o
si
ng

 d
ra

in
a
g
e
 f

e
e
 i
nc

re
a
se

 f
ro

m
 $

4
.5

0
 p

e
r 

m
o
nt

h 
to

 $
5
.0

0
 p

e
r 

m
o
nt

h


Th

e
 r

e
si
d
e
nt

ia
l 
d
ra

in
a
g
e
 f

e
e
 w

a
s 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 t

o
 $

4
.0

0
 p

e
r 

m
o
nt

h 
in

 F
Y
 2

0
1
8
 a

nd
 $

4
.5

0
 p

e
r 

m
o
nt

h 
in

 F
Y
 2

0
1
9


P
ri
o
r 

to
 F

Y
 2

0
1
8
, 
th

e
 r

e
si
d
e
nt

ia
l 
d
ra

in
a
g
e
 f

e
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n 

a
t 
$
3
.0

0
 p

e
r 

m
o
nt

h 
si
nc

e
 i
nc

e
p
ti
o
n 

in
 F

Y
 2

0
0
8


Ea

ch
 $

0
.5

0
 i
nc

re
a
se

 i
n 

th
e
 m

o
nt

hl
y
 r

e
si
d
e
nt

ia
l 
d
ra

in
a
g
e
 f

e
e
 g

e
ne

ra
te

s 
$
3
2
,5

0
0
 i
n 

a
nn

ua
l 
d
ra

in
a

g
e
 f

e
e
 r

e
ve

nu
e

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Fe

es
45

2,
74

2
$ 

  
49

6,
24

1
$ 

   
49

6,
80

0
$ 

   
 

53
3,

59
3

$ 
  

37
,3

52
$ 

   
   

  
7.

53
%

M
is

c.
 In

co
m

e
43

,6
53

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
In

te
re

st
 In

co
m

e
4,

11
0

$ 
   

   
4,

36
2

$ 
   

   
  

5,
87

9
$ 

   
   

  
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
 

1,
51

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

34
.7

8%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
$5

00
,5

05
$5

00
,6

03
$5

02
,6

79
$5

39
,4

72
$3

8,
86

9
7.

76
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t



A
RE

A
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

FE
ES

R
at

e
B

e
lt

o
n

C
o

ve
G

e
o

rg
e

to
w

n
H

ar
ke

r 
H

e
ig

h
ts

K
il

le
e

n
Te

m
p

le

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
al

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

N
o

n
-R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

al

M
in

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

7.
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8.
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

M
ax

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

60
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

30
6.

59
$ 

   
   

   
 

35
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

O
th

e
r

$
1

7
.8

6
/a

cr
e

$
6

.5
0

/2
,8

0
8

 s
f



EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

RE
S

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

P
er

so
nn

el
19

3,
04

0
$ 

  
19

9,
69

2
$ 

   
19

9,
69

2
$ 

   
 

25
0,

10
8

$ 
  

50
,4

16
$ 

   
   

  
25

.2
5%

S
up

pl
ie

s
21

,6
84

$ 
   

 
15

,7
45

$ 
   

  
15

,2
18

$ 
   

   
19

,4
30

$ 
   

 
3,

68
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
23

.4
0%

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

22
,0

19
$ 

   
 

41
,3

04
$ 

   
  

29
,3

90
$ 

   
   

39
,8

90
$ 

   
 

(1
,4

14
)

$ 
   

   
   

-3
.4

2%
S

er
vi

ce
s

4,
21

4
$ 

   
   

20
,1

96
$ 

   
  

16
,2

06
$ 

   
   

19
,7

47
$ 

   
 

(4
49

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-2
.2

2%
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
25

,3
01

$ 
   

 
25

,4
72

$ 
   

  
25

,4
59

$ 
   

   
25

,6
07

$ 
   

 
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
0.

53
%

C
ap

ita
l

17
6,

68
2

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
C

ap
ita

l R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
43

,6
00

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
8,

53
0

$ 
   

   
 

8,
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

69
,9

00
$ 

   
 

23
0,

00
0

$ 
   

23
0,

00
0

$ 
   

 
20

7,
50

0
$ 

  
(2

2,
50

0)
$ 

   
   

 
-9

.7
8%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$5

56
,4

40
$5

32
,4

09
$5

15
,9

65
$5

70
,8

12
$3

8,
40

3
7.

21
%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t



D
RA

IN
AG

E 
FU

N
D

 F
O

RE
CA

ST
FY

 2
01

9
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

FY
 2

02
0

Pr
op

os
ed

FY
 2

02
1

Fo
re

ca
st

ed
FY

 2
02

2
Fo

re
ca

st
ed

FY
 2

02
3

Fo
re

ca
st

ed
FY

 2
02

4
Fo

re
ca

st
ed

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 $
   

   
   

   
23

6,
59

7 
 $

   
   

   
   

22
3,

31
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
19

1,
97

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

18
9,

16
8 

 $
   

   
   

   
18

7,
11

1 
 $

   
   

   
   

17
9,

79
1 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Fe

es
49

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

53
3,

59
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
54

6,
93

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

56
0,

60
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
57

4,
62

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

58
8,

98
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
O

th
er

 M
is

c.
 In

co
m

e
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

89
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
50

2,
67

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

53
9,

47
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
55

2,
81

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

56
6,

48
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
58

0,
50

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

59
4,

88
1

$ 
   

   
   

  

P
er

so
nn

el
19

9,
69

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

25
0,

10
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
26

0,
11

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

27
0,

51
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
28

1,
33

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
2,

59
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
S

up
pl

ie
s

15
,2

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
19

,4
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
20

,6
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

21
,2

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
21

,8
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
29

,3
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

39
,8

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
41

,0
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

42
,3

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
43

,5
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

44
,8

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
S

er
vi

ce
s

16
,2

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
19

,7
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
,3

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
20

,9
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

21
,5

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
22

,2
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

26
0,

50
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

9,
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

34
1,

55
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
35

4,
39

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
2,

73
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
38

1,
58

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

25
,4

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
25

,6
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

25
,7

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
24

,9
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

25
,0

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
ap

ita
l

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ap

ita
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t P
la

n
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,3

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
29

,2
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
30

,9
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

Tr
an

sf
er

23
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
51

5,
96

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

57
0,

81
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
55

5,
61

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

56
8,

54
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
58

7,
82

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

59
7,

59
9

$ 
   

   
   

  

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 Im
pa

ct
(1

3,
28

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

(3
1,

34
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

,8
03

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,0
56

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(7

,3
21

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,7
18

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

En
di

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

22
3,

31
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
19

1,
97

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
9,

16
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
18

7,
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
9,

79
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

7,
07

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

L
e

s
s
: 
M

in
im

u
m

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 (
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 O

&
M

 B
u

d
g

e
t)

6
5

,8
7

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
2

,2
9

4
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
5

,3
8

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
8

,6
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
3

,1
8

4
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5

,3
9

5
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
e

s
s
: 
M

in
im

u
m

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 (
D

e
b

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

)
2

5
,4

5
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,6
0

7
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,7
0

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4

,9
3

6
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,0
0

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,0
3

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 in

 E
xc

es
s 

of
 M

in
im

um
13

1,
97

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

84
,0

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
78

,0
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

73
,5

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
61

,6
05

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

56
,6

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

  



CA
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
CT

S 
FO

RE
CA

ST

Ju
ne

 P
re

se
nt

a
ti
o
n
 E

n
d

in
g

 B
a

la
nc

e
 F

Y
2

4
: 
($

2
9
2

,4
8
7
)

Fu
nd

in
g:

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
1

FY
 2

02
2

FY
 2

02
3

FY
 2

02
4

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 B

al
an

ce
73

,6
17

$ 
   

   
  

24
0,

01
3

$ 
   

   
24

,0
13

$ 
   

   
  

60
,5

13
$ 

   
   

  
97

,0
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
8,

51
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
Tr

an
sf

er
 fr

om
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Fu
nd

23
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
20

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l F
un

di
ng

23
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
20

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

16
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
16

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

16
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s:

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
1

FY
 2

02
2

FY
 2

02
3

FY
 2

02
4

C
om

pl
et

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

St
ud

ie
s 

- R
ed

 R
oc

k
1,

34
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
an

d 
Fi

na
l D

es
ig

n 
- M

es
qu

ite
 R

oa
d

9,
92

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

St
ud

ie
s 

- L
ib

er
ty

 H
ill

17
,4

39
$ 

   
   

  
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
St

ud
ie

s 
- N

ol
an

 C
re

ek
 F

lo
od

w
ay

16
,5

00
$ 

   
   

  
M

S4
 P

er
m

it 
Pl

an
19

,9
00

$ 
   

   
  

R
eg

io
na

l N
ol

an
 C

re
ek

 S
tu

dy
 c

os
t-s

ha
re

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
F

u
tu

re
 P

ro
je

c
ts

L
ib

e
rt

y
 H

il
l 
D

ra
in

a
g

e
 P

ro
je

c
t

2
5

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

5
0

0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
e

q
u

it
e

 R
o

a
d

 D
ra

in
a

g
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
4

0
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
 

B
la

ir
 &

 4
th

 D
ra

in
a

g
e

 P
ro

je
c
t

1
2

5
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
 

1
2

5
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
 

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 S

tu
d

ie
s
 -

 M
it
c
h

e
ll
 B

ra
n

c
h

5
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s/
C

om
m

itm
en

ts
65

,1
04

$ 
   

   
  

42
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
12

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

12
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  

En
di

ng
 B

al
an

ce
24

0,
01

3
$ 

   
   

24
,0

13
$ 

   
   

  
60

,5
13

$ 
   

   
  

97
,0

13
$ 

   
   

  
20

8,
51

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
29

,9
87

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

Pr
oj

ec
t C

ol
or

 K
ey

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

St
ud

y
Sy

st
em

 o
r R

eg
io

na
l M

as
te

r P
la

n
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t



H
O

TE
L-

M
O

TE
L 

FU
N

D
Fi

sc
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

C
le

a
n-

up
 B

ud
g
e
t



EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

RE
S


FY

 2
0
2
0
 I
ni

ti
a
ti
ve

s


P
ro

vi
d
e
 f

in
a
nc

ia
l 
su

p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 B

e
lt
o
n 

C
ha

m
b
e
r 

V
is
it
o
r 

C
e
nt

e
r 

(5
0
%

) 
Ju

ne
 P

re
se

nt
a
ti
o
n:

 $
1
7
,2

8
0


En

ha
nc

e
 C

hr
is
tm

a
s 

o
n 

th
e
 C

hi
sh

o
lm

 T
ra

il 
b
y
 m

a
ki

ng
 i
t 
a
 m

ul
ti
-d

a
y
 e

ve
nt

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 a

tt
ra

ct
 o

ut
 o

f 
to

w
n 

g
ue

st
s 


R
e
st

o
re

 B
e
lt
o
n’

s 
H

is
to

ri
c 

S
ta

nd
p
ip

e
 a

nd
 t

ra
ns

fo
rm

 t
he

 S
ta

nd
p
ip

e
 s

it
e
 i
nt

o
 a

 d
e
st

in
a
ti
o
n 

fo
r 

o
ut

 o
f 

to
w

n 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 f

e
a
tu

re
 f

o
r 

D
o
w

nt
o
w

n 
B
e
lt
o
n

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
27

,2
06

$ 
   

   
   

29
,0

16
$ 

   
   

   
29

,0
16

$ 
   

   
   

30
,1

05
$ 

   
   

   
1,

08
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
3.

75
%

Su
pp

lie
s

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(1
75

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-3

6.
84

%
R

ep
ai

rs
 &

 M
ai

nt
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(7
75

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-1

00
.0

0%
Se

rv
ic

es
7,

52
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
58

,2
47

$ 
   

   
   

51
,1

95
$ 

   
   

   
56

,2
51

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,9

96
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-3

.4
3%

Sp
on

so
rs

hi
ps

24
,7

39
$ 

   
   

   
57

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

49
,7

92
$ 

   
   

   
52

,7
80

$ 
   

   
   

(4
,2

20
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-7

.4
0%

Vi
si

to
r C

en
te

r S
up

po
rt

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
-

Be
ll C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

po
9,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5.
26

%
C

ity
 S

up
po

rt
2,

46
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
Hi

st
or

ic
 P

re
se

rv
at

io
n

1,
05

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

12
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

12
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

-
Tr

an
sf

er
s

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
66

.6
7%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$8

2,
48

1
17

3,
51

3
$ 

   
   

 
16

6,
33

6
$ 

   
   

 
31

0,
43

6
$ 

   
   

 
13

6,
92

3
$ 

   
   

 
78

.9
1%

C
ha

ng
e 

fro
m

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t



D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
FU

N
D

Fi
sc

a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

C
le

a
n-

up
 B

ud
g
e
t



FY
 2

01
9 

PR
O

JE
CT

IO
N

* 
P
ro

je
ct

e
d
 R

e
ve

nu
e
s 

in
cl

ud
e
 a

d
d
it
io

na
l 
FY

 2
0
1
9
 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
o
f 

$
4
5
,0

0
0

 f
ro

m
 G

e
ne

ra
l 
Fu

nd
 –

no
 a

ct
io

n
 a

t 
th

is
 m

e
e
ti
ng

- D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
-

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

30
6,

46
2

$ 
   

  

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
s

1,
09

4,
92

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
(1

,1
73

,8
63

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

ud
ge

t
(7

8,
93

5)
$ 

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
En

di
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
22

7,
52

7
$ 

   
  



FY
 2

02
0 

PR
O

PO
SE

D

- D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d 
-

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
22

7,
52

7
$ 

   
   

P
ro

po
se

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s

95
6,

11
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

P
ro

po
se

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

(1
,1

83
,1

10
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 Im
pa

ct
 o

f P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ud
ge

t
(2

27
,0

00
)

$ 
   

  

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

52
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  



RE
VE

N
U

ES
 A

N
D

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

RE
S

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ac

tu
al

Bu
dg

et
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

Ad
 V

al
or

em
 T

ax
es

99
0,

96
1

$ 
   

 
92

2,
41

7
$ 

   
 

92
6,

88
5

$ 
   

 
94

2,
47

2
$ 

   
 

20
,0

55
$ 

   
   

   
 

2.
17

%
Bo

nd
 P

ro
ce

ed
s

1,
18

2
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sf

er
 fr

om
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

0,
50

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

10
,3

79
$ 

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

17
,5

43
$ 

   
   

13
,6

38
$ 

   
   

3,
63

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

36
.3

8%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
$1

,2
02

,5
22

$9
32

,4
17

$1
,0

94
,9

28
$9

56
,1

10
$2

3,
69

3
2.

54
%

Ch
an

ge
 fr

om
 2

01
9 

Bu
dg

et

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ac

tu
al

Bu
dg

et
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

Bo
nd

 P
rin

ci
pa

l
70

5,
53

8
$ 

   
 

75
9,

25
0

$ 
   

 
75

9,
25

0
$ 

   
 

79
2,

96
3

$ 
   

 
33

,7
13

$ 
   

   
   

 
4.

44
%

Bo
nd

 In
te

re
st

35
6,

50
6

$ 
   

 
40

9,
46

7
$ 

   
 

40
9,

46
7

$ 
   

 
38

2,
44

7
$ 

   
 

(2
7,

02
0)

$ 
   

   
   

-6
.6

0%
Bo

nd
 P

ay
in

g 
Ag

en
t F

ee
s

34
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

15
0

$ 
   

   
  

1,
15

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

15
0

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

%
Ar

bi
tra

ge
 R

eb
at

e 
C

al
c 

Fe
es

4,
27

4
$ 

   
   

  
6,

55
0

$ 
   

   
  

4,
50

9
$ 

   
   

  
6,

55
0

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

%
Bo

nd
 Is

su
e 

C
os

ts
(6

59
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
(5

13
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$1

,0
66

,0
00

$1
,1

76
,4

17
$1

,1
73

,8
63

$1
,1

83
,1

10
$6

,6
93

0.
57

%

Ch
an

ge
 fr

om
 2

01
9 

Bu
dg

et



-$
4

00
,0

0
0

-$
2

00
,0

0
0

$
0

$
2

00
,0

0
0

$
4

00
,0

0
0

$
6

00
,0

0
0

$
8

00
,0

0
0

$
1

,0
00

,0
0

0

$
1

,2
00

,0
0

0

$
1

,4
00

,0
0

0
2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Fu
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
/T

ra
ns

fe
r 

N
ee

d
ed

R
ev

en
u

e

Ex
pe

nd
it

u
re

s

D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
FU

N
D

 P
RO

JE
CT

IO
N

S

$
5

2
6

,3
7
9

$
1

9
6

,7
9
7

$
1

9
6

,2
7
0

Ju
ne

 P
re

se
nt

a
ti
o
n
:


U

se
 o

f 
Fu

nd
 B

a
la

nc
e

o
ve

r 
5
 y

e
a
rs

: 

$
3
0

3
,3

7
3


R
e
v 

vs
. 
Ex

p
G

a
p
: 
$
1
7

9
,5

0
0


A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
Fu

nd
in

g
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 i
n 

FY
2
1
: 

$
1
4

4
,0

0
0



D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
TA

X 
RA

TE
 H

IS
TO

RY

$
0

.1
1

5
6

 
$

0
.1

1
1

0
 $

0
.1

2
6

6
 

$
0

.1
0

5
3

 

$
0

.0
8

8
6

 

$
0

.0
00

0

$
0

.0
20

0

$
0

.0
40

0

$
0

.0
60

0

$
0

.0
80

0

$
0

.1
00

0

$
0

.1
20

0

$
0

.1
40

0

2
0

09
2

0
10

2
0

11
2

0
12

2
0

13
2

0
14

2
0

15
2

0
16

2
0

17
2

0
18

2
0

19
2

0
20



TA
X 

IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
RE

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

ZO
N

E
Fi

sc
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
2
0
 

C
le

a
n-

up
 B

ud
g
e
t



FY
 2

0
2
0

TI
R
Z
 O

p
e
ra

ti
ng

 F
un

d

6
5

.1
%

P
e
rs

o
nn

e
l

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

26
3,

40
5

$ 
   

   
  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Re

ve
nu

es
Ci

ty
1,

20
3,

43
3

$ 
   

 
Co

un
ty

76
8,

24
2

$ 
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

14
,3

20
$ 

   
   

   
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

1,
98

5,
99

5
$ 

   
  

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
xp

en
dit

ur
es

:
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

Re
ta

il D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

oo
rd

ina
to

r
48

,7
31

$ 
   

   
   

D
e

b
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 -
 P

ri
n

ci
p

a
l, 

In
te

re
st

 &
 F

e
e

s

Pr
inc

ipa
l, I

nt
er

es
t, 

an
d 

Fe
es

41
8,

31
5

$ 
   

   
 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 R

e
vi

ta
liz

a
tio

n
:

Do
wn

to
wn

 F
aç

ad
e 

G
ra

nt
s

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

O
th

e
r 

P
u

b
lic

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
:

He
rit

ag
e 

Pa
rk

1,
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
 

So
ut

h 
Be

lto
n 

Sh
ar

ed
 U

se
 P

at
h

74
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
St

an
dp

ipe
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t
12

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
Lib

ra
ry

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
(1

,9
61

,0
46

)
$ 

   
 

Ne
t I

m
pa

ct
 o

f B
ud

ge
t o

n 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
24

,9
49

$ 
   

   
   

  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
En

di
ng

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e
28

8,
35

4
$ 

   
   

  

- T
IR

Z 
Fu

nd
 -

P
re

li
m

in
a

ry
 P

re
se

nt
a
ti
o
n:

N
e
t 
Im

p
a

ct
: 
($

1
4

1
,7

3
9

)

P
ro

je
ct

e
d
 E

nd
in

g
 F

un
d

 B
a

la
nc

e
: 
$

1
2

1
,6

6
6



RE
VE

N
U

ES

FY
 2

01
8

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

01
9

FY
 2

02
0

Ac
co

un
t N

am
e

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

Am
ou

nt
%

C
ity

 T
IR

Z 
Ta

xe
s

80
6,

82
2

$ 
   

87
7,

62
5

$ 
   

 
90

1,
06

8
$ 

   
 

1,
20

3,
43

3
$ 

 
32

5,
80

8
$ 

   
   

37
.1

2%
C

ou
nt

y 
TI

R
Z 

Ta
xe

s
51

4,
06

7
$ 

   
56

0,
25

4
$ 

   
 

57
3,

99
4

$ 
   

 
76

8,
24

2
$ 

   
 

20
7,

98
8

$ 
   

   
37

.1
2%

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

13
,5

51
$ 

   
  

10
,5

50
$ 

   
   

13
,5

60
$ 

   
   

14
,3

20
$ 

   
   

3,
77

0
$ 

   
   

   
35

.7
3%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
1,

33
4,

44
0

$ 
1,

44
8,

42
9

$ 
 

1,
48

8,
62

2
$ 

 
1,

98
5,

99
5

$ 
 

53
7,

56
6

$ 
   

   
37

.1
1%

C
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 2
01

9 
B

ud
ge

t

 $
50

,0
00

 $
25

0,
00

0

 $
45

0,
00

0

 $
65

0,
00

0

 $
85

0,
00

0

 $
1,

05
0,

00
0

 $
1,

25
0,

00
0

 $
1,

45
0,

00
0

 $
1,

65
0,

00
0

 $
1,

85
0,

00
0

 $
2,

05
0,

00
0

 $
2,

25
0,

00
0

Fi
sc

al
 Y

e
ar

TI
R

Z 
St

u
d

y

A
ct

u
al

 T
ax

es



FY
 2

02
0-

20
24

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g
Au

gu
st

 1
3,

 2
01

9

EXHIBIT "B"



Su
m

m
ar

y

•B
el

to
n’

sS
tr

at
eg

ic
Pl

an
ha

sb
ee

n
up

da
te

d
fo

rt
he

ne
xt

fiv
e

ye
ar

s.

•P
la

n
re

fle
ct

s
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
in

20
19

,a
nd

w
ill

gu
id

e
th

e
Co

m
m

un
ity

in
to

th
e

fu
tu

re
,

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

th
e

ex
ist

in
g

six
(6

)G
oa

lc
at

eg
or

ie
s:

• 
Go

ve
rn

an
ce

• 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

• 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y

• 
Co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

• 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 L
ife

• 
Pa

rk
s/

N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y

•B
el

to
n’

su
pd

at
ed

St
ra

te
gi

c
Pl

an
re

m
ai

ns
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l,
ye

tr
ea

lis
tic

in
sc

op
e.

•A
Sc

or
ec

ar
d

re
vi

ew
s

tw
en

ty
(2

0)
Go

al
s

fo
r

FY
20

19
,a

nd
in

di
ca

te
s

st
at

us
of

go
al

s,
m

an
y

of
w

hi
ch

ar
e

un
de

rw
ay

,a
nd

m
ul

ti-
ye

ar
in

sc
op

e.

•1
9

Go
al

sa
re

pr
es

en
te

d
fo

rF
Y

20
20



Pr
io

rit
y 

1 
G

oa
l S

co
re

ca
rd

: F
Y 

20
19

G
oa

l C
at

eg
or

y
St

ra
te

gi
c P

la
n 

G
oa

l
Fu

nd
in

g
Co

or
di

na
to

r
St

at
us

1
G

ov
er

na
nc

e

a
Im

pl
em

en
tB

al
an

ce
d

Ta
x/

Fe
e

Sc
he

du
le

s
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Di
r. 

of
 F

in
an

ce
2

b
Ad

dr
es

s
TI

RZ
Bo

un
da

ry
an

d
St

ra
te

gi
c

Fu
nd

in
g

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

2

c

Im
pl

em
en

tC
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e
Pl

an
El

em
en

ts
an

d
In

iti
at

e
Su

ns
et

Re
vi

ew
of

De
sig

n
St

an
da

rd
s,

Re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

St
af

f R
es

ou
rc

es
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
Pl

an
ni

ng
2

d
W

or
k

w
ith

St
at

e/
Fe

de
ra

lL
eg

isl
at

or
s

on
Lo

ca
l

Pr
io

rit
ie

s
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

2

e

Ev
al

ua
te

Em
pl

oy
ee

Co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n
Pl

an
in

cl
ud

in
g

TM
RS

re
tir

em
en

t
be

ne
fit

s
–

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

Ra
te

,
U

pd
at

ed
Se

rv
ic

e
Cr

ed
it,

CO
LA

St
af

f R
es

ou
rc

es
Di

re
ct

or
s o

f 
Fi

na
nc

e/
HR

2

2
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y

a
Id

en
tif

y
St

ra
te

gi
c

N
ee

ds
of

th
e

Po
lic

e
De

pa
rt

m
en

t
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Po
lic

e 
Ch

ie
f

2

b
Im

pl
em

en
t

Ch
an

ge
s

in
EM

S
Se

rv
ic

e
an

d
Id

en
tif

y
St

ra
te

gi
c

N
ee

ds
of

th
e

Fi
re

De
pt

.
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Fi
re

 C
hi

ef
/

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

2



Pr
io

rit
y 

1 
G

oa
l S

co
re

ca
rd

: F
Y 

20
19

(C
on

tin
ue

d)

G
oa

l C
at

eg
or

y
St

ra
te

gi
c P

la
n 

G
oa

l
Fu

nd
in

g
Co

or
di

na
to

r
St

at
us

3
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
Li

fe

a
Im

pl
em

en
t

An
nu

al
St

re
et

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Pr
og

ra
m

$5
50

,0
00

Di
re

ct
or

 o
f

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

2

b

Im
pl

em
en

t
M

isc
el

la
ne

ou
s

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
En

ha
nc

em
en

ts
–

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

/D
ra

in
ag

e
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Di
re

ct
or

 o
f 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

2

c
Co

nd
uc

t
Li

br
ar

y
U

se
r

Su
rv

ey
an

d
De

te
rm

in
e

N
ex

tS
te

ps
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

AC
M

/D
ir.

 o
f 

Li
br

ar
y 

Sr
vc

s.
2

4
Ec

on
om

ic
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

a
Im

pl
em

en
tD

ow
nt

ow
n

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tP
la

n
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Di
re

ct
or

s o
f 

PW
/P

la
nn

in
g

2

b
Bu

ild
So

ut
h

IH
35

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

In
fr

a-
st

ru
ct

ur
e

CO
 B

on
ds

; B
ED

C
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
2

c
Co

or
di

na
te

Ci
ty

/
BE

DC
Ef

fo
rt

s
to

En
ha

nc
e

Ec
on

om
ic

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

St
af

f R
es

ou
rc

es
Ci

ty
 M

an
ag

er
/ 

BE
DC

 E
xe

c.
 D

ir.
2

d
Fa

ci
lit

at
e

Re
ta

il,
To

ur
ism

St
ra

te
gi

es
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

Re
ta

il 
De

v. 
Co

or
di

na
to

r
2



Pr
io

rit
y 

1 
G

oa
l S

co
re

ca
rd

: F
Y 

20
19

(C
on

tin
ue

d)

G
oa

l C
at

eg
or

y
St

ra
te

gi
c P

la
n 

G
oa

l
Fu

nd
in

g
Co

or
di

na
to

r
St

at
us

5
Co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

a
Co

ns
tr

uc
t

Hi
ke

/B
ik

e
Tr

ai
l

fr
om

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
Dr

iv
e,

no
rt

h
an

d
w

es
t,

to
Sp

ar
ta

Tx
DO

T 
G

ra
nt

G
ra

nt
 M

at
ch

Di
re

ct
or

s o
f

PW
/P

la
nn

in
g

1

b
De

sig
n

S.
IH

35
Hi

ke
/B

ik
e

Tr
ai

lf
ro

m
Pa

rk
&

Ri
de

,s
ou

th
to

FM
43

6
Tx

DO
T 

G
ra

nt
G

ra
nt

 M
at

ch
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
2

c
Co

or
di

na
te

Re
pa

ir/
Re

pl
ac

em
en

to
fC

en
tr

al
Av

e.
Br

id
ge

in
Ye

tt
ie

Po
lk

Pa
rk

G
ra

nt
 M

at
ch

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

/
Di

r. 
of

 P
W

2

d
Co

nt
in

ue
Pl

an
ni

ng
fo

rL
ak

e
to

La
ke

Rd
.

Ci
ty

, T
xD

O
T,

 
KT

M
PO

, B
el

l 
Co

un
ty

, P
riv

at
e 

De
ve

lo
pe

rs

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

2

6
Pa

rk
s/

N
at

ur
a

l B
ea

ut
y

a
Im

pl
em

en
t

Pa
rk

s
&

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
M

as
te

r
Pl

an
St

af
f R

es
ou

rc
es

AC
M

/D
ire

ct
or

 
of

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

.
2

b
De

sig
n/

Co
ns

tr
uc

tP
ha

se
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

in
He

rit
ag

e
Pa

rk
$1

,0
00

,0
00

AC
M

/D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 P
W

/P
&

R
2



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 1

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

0

G
oa

l C
at

eg
or

ie
s

G
oa

ls

1.
G

ov
er

na
nc

e

a)
C

on
du

ct
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

St
ra

te
gi

c
Pl

an
U

pd
at

e
(2

02
0)

b)
R

ea
ss

es
s

an
d

D
et

er
m

in
e

G
ro

w
th

St
ra

te
gy

c)
Im

pl
em

en
tB

al
an

ce
d

Ta
x/

Fe
e

Sc
he

du
le

s
d)

Ad
dr

es
s

TI
R

Z
Bo

un
da

ry
St

ra
te

gi
c

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
e)

Ev
al

ua
te

Em
pl

oy
ee

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
Pl

an
f)

C
on

du
ct

C
ha

rte
rR

ev
ie

w
g)

C
on

du
ct

Bo
ar

d
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

Se
ss

io
ns

h)
En

ha
nc

e
Be

lto
n’

s
C

us
to

m
er

Se
rv

ic
e/

C
iti

ze
n

En
ga

ge
m

en
t

2.
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty

a)
Ad

dr
es

s
St

ra
te

gi
c

N
ee

ds
fo

rP
ol

ic
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

b)
Ad

dr
es

s
St

ra
te

gi
c

N
ee

ds
fo

rF
ire

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t,

an
d

An
al

yz
e

O
ut

so
ur

ce
d

EM
S

3.
Q

ua
lit

y
of

Li
fe

a)
Ad

dr
es

s
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e/

C
ap

ita
lE

qu
ip

m
en

tN
ee

ds
:

1.
St

re
et

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

2.
W

at
er

/S
ew

er
3.

St
or

m
D

ra
in

ag
e

4.
C

ap
ita

lE
qu

ip
m

en
tR

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

b)
Pl

an
fo

rL
ib

ra
ry

En
ha

nc
em

en
ts



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 1

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

0
(C

on
ti

nu
ed

)

G
oa

l C
at

eg
or

ie
s

G
oa

ls

4.
Ec

on
om

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

a)
Im

pl
em

en
t

D
ow

nt
ow

n
R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Pl

an
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
6t

h

Av
en

ue
G

at
ew

ay
C

or
rid

or
b)

C
om

pl
et

e
IH

35
an

d
IH

14
Se

w
er

/W
at

er
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

c)
C

oo
rd

in
at

e
C

ity
/B

ED
C

ef
fo

rts
to

M
ax

im
iz

e
Pr

oj
ec

t
Su

cc
es

s
d)

U
pd

at
e

R
et

ai
l,

To
ur

is
m

St
ra

te
gi

es

5.
C

on
ne

ct
iv

ity

a)
C

oo
rd

in
at

e
Pr

oj
ec

ts
w

ith
Tx

D
O

T:
1.

Lo
op

12
1

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2.

FM
93

D
es

ig
n/

R
O

W
3.

R
ep

ai
r/R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

of
C

en
tra

l
Av

en
ue

Br
id

ge
in

Ye
tti

e
Po

lk
Pa

rk
4.

IH
14

Al
ig

nm
en

tT
hr

ou
gh

/E
as

to
fB

el
to

n
5.

C
on

tin
ue

Pl
an

ni
ng

fo
rL

ak
e

to
La

ke
R

oa
d

b)
Be

gi
n

IH
35

H
ik

e/
Bi

ke
Tr

ai
lf

ro
m

Pa
rk

&
R

id
e

to
FM

43
6

6.
Pa

rk
s

/N
at

ur
al

B
ea

ut
y

a)
C

on
tin

ue
En

ha
nc

em
en

ts
to

Pa
rk

Sy
st

em
in

cl
ud

in
g

H
er

ita
ge

Pa
rk

an
d

St
an

dp
ip

e
Pa

rk



Re
vi

se
d 

or
 N

ew
 G

oa
ls 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

–
Po

lic
y

Em
ph

as
is

1a
)

Co
nd

uc
tC

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e

St
ra

te
gi

c
Pl

an
U

pd
at

e
(2

02
0)

:R
es

et
Vi

sio
n

1b
)

Re
as

se
ss

an
d

De
te

rm
in

e
G

ro
w

th
St

ra
te

gy
:F

oc
us

in
te

rn
al

ly
1e

)
Ev

al
ua

te
Em

pl
oy

ee
Co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n

Pl
an

:I
m

pr
ov

e
co

m
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s
an

nu
al

ly
1f

)
Co

nd
uc

tC
ha

rt
er

Re
vi

ew
:I

ni
tia

te
Ch

ar
te

rR
ev

ie
w

1g
)

Co
nd

uc
t

Bo
ar

d
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

Se
ss

io
ns

:C
on

du
ct

or
ie

nt
at

io
n,

on
go

in
g

tr
ai

ni
ng

,m
ee

tin
gs

w
ith

Co
un

ci
l

1h
)

En
ha

nc
e

Be
lto

n’
s

Cu
st

om
er

Se
rv

ic
e/

Ci
tiz

en
En

ga
ge

m
en

t:
Ac

hi
ev

e/
m

ai
nt

ai
n

se
rv

an
tl

ea
de

rs
hi

p
m

od
el

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

–
Tr

an
si

tio
n

Ye
ar

fo
rE

M
S

2b
)

Ad
dr

es
s S

tr
at

eg
ic

 N
ee

ds
 fo

r F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

an
d 

An
al

yz
e 

O
ut

so
ur

ce
d 

EM
S:

 
Ev

al
ua

te
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r O

ut
so

ur
ce

d 
EM

S 
Se

rv
ic

e



Re
vi

se
d 

or
 N

ew
 G

oa
ls 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20
Q

ua
lit

y
of

Li
fe

–
M

ai
nt

ai
n/

En
ha

nc
e

3a
)

Ad
dr

es
sI

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e/
Ca

pi
ta

lE
qu

ip
m

en
tN

ee
ds

:
•

St
re

et
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
•

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

•
St

or
m

Dr
ai

na
ge

•
Ca

pi
ta

lE
qu

ip
m

en
tR

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

Co
m

bi
ne

d
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

/c
ap

ita
ln

ee
ds

3b
)

Pl
an

fo
r

Li
br

ar
y

En
ha

nc
em

en
ts

:
Im

pl
em

en
t

N
ee

ds
As

se
ss

m
en

t
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
–

sp
ac

e,
te

ch
no

lo
gy

,c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

,e
xt

er
io

r

Ec
on

om
ic

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t–

Re
co

gn
ize

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s
4a

)
Im

pl
em

en
t

Do
w

nt
ow

n
Re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Pl
an

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

6th

Av
en

ue
Ga

te
w

ay
Co

rr
id

or
:E

xp
an

d
Do

w
nt

ow
n

Re
vi

ta
liz

at
io

n
to

6th
Av

en
ue

4b
)

Co
or

di
na

te
Ci

ty
/B

ED
C

ef
fo

rt
s

to
M

ax
im

ize
Pr

oj
ec

t
Su

cc
es

s:
Co

nt
in

ue
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

,
of

fic
es

,
Ro

ck
w

oo
l,

Bu
sin

es
s

Pa
rk

in
ve

st
m

en
t



Re
vi

se
d 

or
 N

ew
 G

oa
ls 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20

Co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
–

M
on

ito
r/

Co
or

di
na

te
5a

)
Co

or
di

na
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s w
ith

 T
xD

O
T:

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
Tx

DO
T 

ite
m

s
•L

oo
p 

12
1 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

•F
M

 9
3 

De
sig

n/
RO

W
•R

ep
ai

r/
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f C

en
tr

al
 A

ve
nu

e 
Br

id
ge

 in
 Y

et
tie

Po
lk

 
Pa

rk
•I

H 
14

 A
lig

nm
en

t T
hr

ou
gh

/E
as

t o
f B

el
to

n
•C

on
tin

ue
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r L

ak
e 

to
 L

ak
e 

Ro
ad

5a
-1

)C
on

tin
ue

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r L
ak

e 
to

 L
ak

e 
Ro

ad
 P

ro
je

ct



Re
vi

se
d 

or
 N

ew
 G

oa
ls 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20

Pa
rk

s&
N

at
ur

al
Be

au
ty

–
Pr

ov
id

e
En

ha
nc

em
en

ts
6a

)
Co

nt
in

ue
En

ha
nc

em
en

ts
to

Pa
rk

Sy
st

em
in

cl
ud

in
g

He
rit

ag
e

Pa
rk

an
d

St
an

dp
ip

e
Pa

rk
:

Bu
ild

st
re

et
(2

4th
)

an
d

ut
ili

tie
s

fo
r

He
rit

ag
e

Pa
rk

an
d

de
ve

lo
p

He
rit

ag
e

Pa
rk

M
as

te
r

Pl
an

;
be

gi
n

St
an

dp
ip

e
Pa

rk
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 2

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

1
 

G
o
a
l 
C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 

G
o
a
ls

 

1
. 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

a
) 

U
p
d
a
te

 C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s 
M

a
st

e
r 
P

la
n

 a
t 
5
 Y

e
a
r 

A
n
n

iv
e
rs

a
ry

 
b
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

T
IR

Z
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s 
M

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
 B

o
u
n
d

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s
 

c)
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
B

a
la

n
ce

d
 T

a
x/

F
e
e
 S

ch
e
d

u
le

 
d
) 

E
va

lu
a
te

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 C

o
m

p
e
n
sa

tio
n
 P

la
n

 
e
) 

E
va

lu
a
te

 
B

e
lto

n
’s

 
L
o

n
g
-T

e
rm

 
F

u
tu

re
 

W
a
te

r 
R

ig
h
ts

 
fo

r 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y  

f)
 

C
o
n
d

u
ct

 B
o

a
rd

 T
ra

in
in

g
/C

o
o
rd

in
a
tio

n
 S

e
ss

io
n
s
 

 

2
. 

P
u

b
li

c
 S

a
fe

ty
 

a
) 

A
n
a

ly
ze

 P
D

 F
a
ci

lit
y 

N
e
e
d
s 

a
n
d
 M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l C

o
u
rt

 
b
) 

A
n
a

ly
ze

 F
ir
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 
F

a
ci

lit
y 

N
e
e

d
s 

3
. 

Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if

e
 

a
) 

A
d
d
re

ss
 I
n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

/C
a
p
ita

l E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
N

e
e
d
s:

 
•
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 
•
 

W
a
te

r/
S

e
w

e
r 

•
 

S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

a
g

e
 

•
 

C
a
p
ita

l E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
R

e
p

la
ce

m
e
n
t 

 

4
. 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

a
)  

K
e
e

p
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n
 B

e
lto

n
 V

ita
l 

b
) 

E
st

a
b

lis
h
 F

a
ça

d
e
 G

ra
n
ts

 f
o
r 

6
th
 A

ve
n
u
e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

c)
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 C
ity

/B
E

D
C

 E
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 M
a
xi

m
iz

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
c
ce

ss
 

d
) 

D
e
ve

lo
p
 I
H

 3
5
, 

IH
 1

4
 C

o
rr

id
o
rs

 
e
)  

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
R

e
ta

il 
a
n
d

 T
o
u
ri

sm
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s 
 

5
. 

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti

v
it

y
 

a
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ith
 T

xD
O

T
 

•
 

L
o
o
p

 1
2

1
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
•
 

F
M

 9
3
 D

e
si

g
n
/R

O
W

 
•
 

R
e
p
a

ir
/R

e
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
A

ve
n
u

e
 B

ri
d
g

e
 i
n
 Y

e
tt

ie
 

P
o
lk

 P
a
rk

 
•
 

IH
 1

4
 A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
/E

a
st

 o
f 

B
e
lto

n
 

•
 

C
o
n
tin

u
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

L
a
k
e
 t
o
 L

a
k
e
 R

o
a
d

 
b
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 I
H

 3
5
 H

ik
e
/B

ik
e
 T

ra
il 

fr
o
m

 P
a
rk

 &
 R

id
e
 t
o
 F

M
 4

3
6

 

6
. 

P
a
rk

s
 /
 N

a
tu

ra
l 

B
e
a
u

ty
 

 
a
) 

C
o
n
tin

u
e
 E

n
h

a
n
ce

m
e
n
ts

 to
 P

a
rk

 S
ys

te
m

 a
t H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

 
S

ta
n

d
p

ip
e

 P
a
rk

 
 

 



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 3

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

2
 

G
o
a
l 
C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 

G
o
a
ls

 

1
. 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

a
) 

U
p
d
a
te

 C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s 
M

a
st

e
r 
P

la
n

 a
t 
5
 Y

e
a
r 

A
n
n

iv
e
rs

a
ry

 
b
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

T
IR

Z
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s 
M

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
 B

o
u
n
d

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s
 

c)
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
B

a
la

n
ce

d
 T

a
x/

F
e
e
 S

ch
e
d

u
le

 
d
) 

E
va

lu
a
te

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 C

o
m

p
e
n
sa

tio
n
 P

la
n

 
e
) 

E
va

lu
a
te

 
B

e
lto

n
’s

 
L
o

n
g
-T

e
rm

 
F

u
tu

re
 

W
a
te

r 
R

ig
h
ts

 
fo

r 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

f)
 

C
o
n
d

u
ct

 B
o

a
rd

 T
ra

in
in

g
/C

o
o
rd

in
a
tio

n
 S

e
ss

io
n
s 

 

2
. 

P
u

b
li

c
 S

a
fe

ty
 

a
) 

A
n
a

ly
ze

 P
D

 F
a
ci

lit
y 

N
e
e
d
s 

a
n
d
 M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l C

o
u
rt

 
b
) 

A
n
a

ly
ze

 F
ir
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 
F

a
ci

lit
y 

N
e
e

d
s 

3
. 

Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if

e
 

a
) 

A
d
d
re

ss
 I
n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

/C
a
p
ita

l E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
N

e
e
d
s:

 
• 

S
tr

e
e
t 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 
• 

W
a
te

r/
S

e
w

e
r 

• 
S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
a
g

e
 

• 
C

a
p
ita

l E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
R

e
p

la
ce

m
e
n
t 

 

4
. 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

a
) 

K
e
e

p
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n
 B

e
lto

n
 V

ita
l 

b
) 

E
st

a
b

lis
h
 F

a
ça

d
e
 G

ra
n
ts

 f
o
r 

6
th
 A

ve
n
u
e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

c)
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 C
ity

/B
E

D
C

 E
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 M
a
xi

m
iz

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
c
ce

ss
 

d
) 

D
e
ve

lo
p
 I
H

 3
5
, 

IH
 1

4
 C

o
rr

id
o
rs

 
e
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
R

e
ta

il 
a
n
d

 T
o
u
ri

sm
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s 
 

5
. 

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti

v
it

y
 

a
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ith
 T

xD
O

T
 

• 
L
o
o
p

 1
2

1
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
• 

F
M

 9
3
 D

e
si

g
n
/R

O
W

 
• 

R
e
p
a

ir
/R

e
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
A

ve
n
u

e
 B

ri
d
g

e
 i
n
 Y

e
tt

ie
 

P
o
lk

 P
a
rk

 
• 

IH
 1

4
 A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
/E

a
st

 o
f 

B
e
lto

n
 

• 
C

o
n
tin

u
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

L
a
k
e
 t
o
 L

a
k
e
 R

o
a
d

 
b
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 I
H

 3
5
 H

ik
e
/B

ik
e
 T

ra
il 

fr
o
m

 P
a
rk

 &
 R

id
e
 t
o
 F

M
 4

3
6

 

6
. 

P
a
rk

s
 /
 N

a
tu

ra
l 

B
e
a
u

ty
 

 
a
) 

C
o
n
tin

u
e
 E

n
h

a
n
ce

m
e
n
ts

 to
 P

a
rk

 S
ys

te
m

 a
t H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

 
S

ta
n

d
p

ip
e

 P
a
rk

 
 

 



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 4

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

3
 

G
o
a
l 
C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 

G
o
a
ls

 

1.
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

a)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t U
pd

a
te

d 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
 

b)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

T
IR

Z
 

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
(e

xp
ire

s 
in

 2
0

24
) 

c)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t B
a

la
nc

e
d 

T
ax

/F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
 

d)
 

E
va

lu
at

e 
E

m
pl

o
ye

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

P
la

n
 

e)
 

C
on

d
uc

t  C
ha

rt
er

 R
e

vi
e

w
 (

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 2

02
5)

 if
 n

ee
de

d
 

 

2.
 

P
u

b
lic

 S
af

et
y 

a)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t u
pd

at
ed

 P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

 
b)

 
Im

pl
em

en
t u

pd
at

ed
 F

ire
 D

e
pa

rt
m

en
t S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
P

la
n

 
 

3.
 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
L

if
e 

a)
 

A
dd

re
ss

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
/C

ap
ita

l E
qu

ip
m

en
t N

e
ed

s:
 

• 
S

tr
ee

t 
M

a
in

te
na

nc
e

 
• 

W
at

er
/S

e
w

er
 

• 
S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
ag

e
 

• 
C

ap
ita

l E
qu

ip
m

en
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

b)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 S
o

ut
h 

M
a

in
 S

tr
ee

t 
 

4.
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

  

a)
 

C
on

tin
u

e 
D

o
w

nt
o

w
n 

E
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
 

b)
 

C
on

tin
u

e 
D

e
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
B

E
D

C
 P

ro
p

er
tie

s 
c)

 
C

on
tin

u
e 

D
e

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

IH
 3

5,
 I

H
 1

4 
C

or
ri

do
rs

 
 

5.
 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 
 

a)
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ith
 T

xD
O

T
 

• 
Lo

op
 1

2
1 

C
o

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
 

• 
F

M
 9

3 
D

es
ig

n/
R

O
W

 
• 

R
ep

a
ir/

R
e

pl
ac

em
en

t 
of

 C
e

nt
ra

l A
ve

n
ue

 B
ri

dg
e

 in
 Y

et
tie

 
P

ol
k 

P
ar

k 
• 

IH
 1

4 
A

lig
nm

en
t T

hr
ou

gh
/E

as
t o

f 
B

el
to

n
 

• 
C

on
tin

u
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r 
La

ke
 to

 L
ak

e 
R

oa
d

 
 

6.
 

P
ar

ks
 / 

N
at

u
ra

l B
ea

u
ty

 
 

a)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t U
pd

a
te

d 
P

ar
ks

 P
la

n
 

b)
 

E
nh

an
ce

 N
ol

an
 C

re
ek

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

 
 



C
ity

 o
f B

el
to

n,
 T

ex
as

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
FY

 2
02

0
Ye

ar
 5

: T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
r 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n
P

ri
or

it
y 

1 
G

oa
ls

: F
Y

 2
02

4

G
o
a
l 
C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 

G
o
a
ls

 

1.
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

a
) 

C
o
n
d

u
ct

 C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 U

p
d
a

te
 (

2
0
2
5
) 

b
) 

R
e
a
ss

e
ss

 G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

c)
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
B

a
la

n
ce

d
 T

a
x/

F
e
e
 S

ch
e
d

u
le

 
d
) 

E
va

lu
a
te

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 C

o
m

p
e
n
sa

tio
n
 P

la
n

 
e
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

fo
r 

T
IR

Z
 

B
o
u

n
d
a
ry

 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

(e
xp

ir
e
s 

in
 2

0
2
4
) 

 

2.
 

P
u

b
lic

 S
af

et
y 

a
) 

A
d
d
re

ss
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d
s 

o
f 

P
o

lic
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

b
) 

A
d
d
re

ss
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d
s 

o
f 

F
ir
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

 

3.
 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
L

if
e 

a
) 

A
d
d
re

ss
 I
n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

/C
a
p
ita

l E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
N

e
e
d
s:

 
• 

S
tr

e
e
t 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 
• 

W
at

e
r/

S
e

w
e
r 

• 
S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
a
g

e
 

• 
C

a
p
ita

l E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
R

e
p

la
ce

m
e
n
t 

 
4.

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

  

a
) 

K
e
e

p
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n
 V

ita
l 

b
) 

E
n
h

a
n
ce

 I
H

 3
5

 a
n

d
 I
H

 1
4
 C

o
rr

id
o
r 

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

c)
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 C
ity

/B
E

D
C

 E
ff

or
ts

 t
o
 M

a
xi

m
iz

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
cc

e
ss

 
 

5.
 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 
 

a
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ith
 T

xD
O

T
 

• 
L
o
o
p

 1
2

1
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
• 

F
M

 9
3
 D

e
si

g
n
/R

O
W

 
• 

R
e
p
a

ir
/R

e
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
e

n
tr

a
l A

ve
n

u
e

 B
ri

d
g
e

 in
 Y

e
tt

ie
 

P
o
lk

 P
a
rk

 
• 

IH
 1

4
 A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
/E

a
st

 o
f 

B
e
lto

n
 

• 
C

o
n
tin

u
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

L
a
ke

 t
o
 L

a
ke

 R
o
a
d

 
• 

O
th

e
r 

C
ity

 P
ri
o
ri

tie
s 

 
6.

 
P

ar
ks

 / 
N

at
u

ra
l B

ea
u

ty
 

 
a
) 

U
p
d
a
te

 P
a
rk

s 
M

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
 a

t 
5
 Y

e
a
r 

A
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 
 

 


		Goal Categories

		Goals



		1. Governance

		a) Conduct Comprehensive Strategic Plan Update (2025)

b) Reassess Growth Strategy

c) Implement Balanced Tax/Fee Schedule

d) Evaluate Employee Compensation Plan

e) Implement Plan for TIRZ Boundary Strategic Objectives (expires in 2024)





		2. Public Safety

		a) Address Strategic Needs of Police Department

b) Address Strategic Needs of Fire Department





		3. Quality of Life

		a) Address Infrastructure/Capital Equipment Needs:

· Street Maintenance

· Water/Sewer

· Storm Drainage

· Capital Equipment Replacement





		4. Economic Development





		a) Keep Downtown Vital

b) Enhance IH 35 and IH 14 Corridor Development

c) Coordinate City/BEDC Efforts to Maximize Project Success





		5. Connectivity



		a) Coordinate Projects with TxDOT

· Loop 121 Construction

· FM 93 Design/ROW

· Repair/Replacement of Central Avenue Bridge in Yettie Polk Park

· IH 14 Alignment Through/East of Belton

· Continue Planning for Lake to Lake Road

· Other City Priorities





		6. Parks / Natural Beauty



		a) Update Parks Master Plan at 5 Year Anniversary











FY
 2

02
0-

20
24

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 A

do
pt

io
n

•T
he

St
ra

te
gi

c
Pl

an
U

pd
at

e
w

ill
be

pl
ac

ed
on

Ci
ty

w
eb

sit
e

fo
r

pu
bl

ic
re

vi
ew

an
d

co
m

m
en

tf
ol

lo
w

in
g

th
e

Au
gu

st
13

th
m

ee
tin

g.

•W
e

in
vi

te
pu

bl
ic

co
m

m
en

ts
at

th
e

Ci
ty

Co
un

ci
lm

ee
tin

g
on

Se
pt

em
be

r
10

,
20

19
.

•A
tt

he
Se

pt
em

be
r

17
th

Co
un

ci
lm

ee
tin

g,
w

e
w

ill
re

co
m

m
en

d
ad

op
tio

n
of

an
or

di
na

nc
e

ap
pr

ov
in

g
th

e
St

ra
te

gi
c

Pl
an

U
pd

at
e

fo
rF

Y
20

20
-2

02
4

to
gu

id
e

th
e

Ci
ty

du
rin

g
th

e
ne

xt
fiv

e
ye

ar
s.



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 

 
A. Civil Service Commission 
B. Historic Preservation Commission 
 
Originating Department: Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
Background 

 
A. Jimmy Rowton’s term on the Civil Service Commission ends on September 24, 2019. He 

has expressed a desire to serve another term, and Mayor Grayson is recommending him 
for reappointment. 

B. Barrett Covington and Ann Carpenter have terms on the Historic Preservation 
Commission that end on September 8, 2019. Both have expressed a desire to serve 
another term, and Mayor Grayson is recommending both for reappointment. 

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the appointments. 
 
Attachments 
 
None 



 
                                                                                                                           

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
         
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider amendments to the Downtown Façade Improvement Grant (FIG) Program. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Case Summary 
 
The Façade Improvement Grant (FIG) program was established in 2006 to provide assistance 
to owners that would like to rehabilitate downtown commercial buildings. The FIG focuses on 
improvements to the exterior of downtown buildings that are visible to the traveling public. The 
FIG is available on a 50/50 matching basis with a cap of $10,000 per grant. Properties with two 
street facing facades are eligible for a maximum of $20,000 per grant.  
 
The current FIG process requires all applications to be reviewed by the Historic Preservation 
Commission (HPC), regardless of the location of the property. This proposed amendment will 
streamline review for properties located outside of a Historic District or a Historical Preservation 
Overlay District by eliminating the review of the HPC. Proposed edits to the FIG grant program 
are shown below: 
 

I.4.c. Notwithstanding anything stated in this Application to the contrary, final 
approval for any Grant shall be vested in the City Council, at its sole 
discretion. The Historic Preservation Commission shall be an advisory board 
to the City Council when the property in question is located inside a Historic 
District or a Historical Preservation Overlay District, and shall make 
recommendations regarding the approval of such Façade Improvement 
Grant requests. 

I.4.d. The Historic Preservation Commission and City Council, and when 
appropriate as stated in (c) above, the Historic Preservation Commission, 
will receive recommendations from the Planning Department which will 
review each all or a part of the Application. Recommendations from the 
Planning Department shall be advisory only. No recommendation shall be 
binding on either the Historic Preservation Commission and or the City 
Council. 

 
In general, properties east of North Blair Street are in the Downtown Development District but 
are not within a Historic District or a Historical Preservation Overlay District. These applications 



 
                                                                                                                           

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

will be reviewed administratively by the Planning Department for completeness before 
providing recommendations to the City Council as the final decision-making body.  
 
Properties within a Historic District or a Historic Preservation Overlay District will not deviate 
from the current practice. These applications will be reviewed by staff for completeness, and 
presented to the HPC for evaluation of appropriateness for the historic district or overlay district. 
As the advisory board, the HPC will provide recommendations to City Council on these 
applications.  
 
In summary, we believe that the recommended amendment will simplify and expedite the FIG 
process for property owners outside the historic district.    
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the proposed amendments to the Façade Improvement Grant 
Program Application. 
 
Attachments 
 
Exhibit A: Revised Façade Improvement Grant Program Application 



 

 

CITY OF BELTON  
FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM  

Adopted:  November 28, 2006  
Revised: June 2018  

Guidelines and Application Packet  

INDEX:  

Application Instructions.…………….…...2  

Guidelines……………….…………………..4  

Application…………….…………………….7  

Agreement…………….……………………...8  

Program Checklist….……………………….9 

Rehabilitation Tips……….……………….10  

Secretary of the Interior Guidelines…….11 Downtown 

Development District……….12  



2  

 

Application Instructions  

If you have any questions, please contact the Planning Department at 254-933-5812. 

The Facade Improvement Grant Program is established to encourage quality exterior rehabilitation 
in Belton’s historic business district. Any commercial property within Belton’s Downtown 
Development District is eligible for grant funds. The attached Application and Agreement should 
be submitted with support documents to the Planning Department for review by staff. The 
Planning Department is located at 333 Water Street, Belton, Texas.  

The City of Belton Facade Improvement Grant Program is established as a single payment 
reimbursement to property owners per building/business, and in some situations, 
tenants. Facade grants are available on a 50/50 matching basis with a cap of $10,000 per 
façade adjacent to a public street or alley, with a maximum two facades eligible for a 
grant. A downtown building with two street facing facades is eligible for a maximum 
grant of $20,000. Facade Grant funds focus on exterior work (visible to the traveling 
public) on storefronts, commercial buildings and commercial residential buildings in the 
Downtown Development District. (See map page 12).  

The attached Grant Application and Agreement must be submitted with requested 
support documents to the Planning Department for review prior to any work being 
initiated.  

I. Grant Application Process 

1. Determine Eligibility: Discuss plans with the Planning Department. The 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation should be a reference 
guide when making any design improvements to properties in the 
Downtown Development District. 

2. Complete the Facade Improvement Grant Program Application and 
Agreement (attached) with copy of cost estimates. 

3. Submit photos and any project plans of building facade to be improved. 

4. The approval process will include the following elements: 

FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT  
PROGRAM APPLICATION   



3  

a) All facade grant projects must meet current building standards andcodes, 
as well as building permit requirements. 

b) All applicants are required to present their grant reimbursement project 
to the Planning Department for review. 

c) Notwithstanding anything stated in this Application to the contrary, final 
approval for any Grant shall be vested in the City Council, at its sole 
discretion. The Historic Preservation Commission shall be an advisory 
board to the City Council when the property in question is located inside 
a Historic District or a Historical Preservation Overlay District, and shall 
make recommendations regarding the approval of such Façade 
Improvement Grant requests. 

d) The Historic Preservation Commission and City Council, and when 
appropriate as stated in (c) above, the Historic Preservation Commission, 
will receive recommendations from the Planning Department which will 
review each all or a part of the Application.  Recommendations from the 
Planning Department shall be advisory only. No recommendation shall 
be binding on either the Historic Preservation Commission and or the City 
Council. 

e) The Planning Department shall consider only Applications which have 
been properly and fully completed and which contain all information 
required in the Application or requested by city staff, the Historic 
Preservation Commission, or City Council. 

f) All construction bids submitted by an Applicant must be current and must 
be dated no earlier than ninety (90) days prior to the Application request. 
Bids shall be submitted on the contractor’s or project architect’s letterhead 
and shall contain the contractors name, address, telephone number and 
shall itemize the bid in a manner that allows the City staff to determine 
the bid components and authenticity of the bid. 

g) An Applicant who submits an Application that was denied by the City 
Council shall not be eligible to re-submit a Grant Application for six (6) 
months from the date the prior Application was denied. 

h) As a condition of this Grant Application and in consideration of the 
opportunity to apply for a grant, the Applicant consents and shall allow 
City inspections to determine that the grant, if awarded, shall not be used 
for construction to any building that is not in compliance with the City 
Municipal Codes and Ordinances which are applicable to the construction 
contemplated in the application. 

i) The Applicant, by submission of this Application, represents the 
construction, described within the Application, shall be used in a building 
which is in compliance with all codes and ordinances.  



4  

j) The City Council shall have sole discretion in awarding Grants. The City 
Council’s determination shall be deemed the final action regarding the 
Application. The Planning Department shall recommend Grant awards 
taking into consideration the Grant amount requested, Grant funds 
available, the Grant program objectives, condition of the building in 
which the Grant funds will be used, effectiveness of the construction, 
other Grant requests, the type and nature of the construction, and the 
proposed construction results considering the Grant program. 

k) No Applicant has a proprietary right to receive Grant funds. The Planning 
Department shall consider any Application within its discretionary 
authority to determine what Grant amount would be in the best interest 
of the Grant Program. The review criteria may include, but shall not be 
limited to, compatibility with existing downtown structures, architectural 
design, streetscape objectives, and overall redevelopment of the 
Downtown Development District. 

l) The Applicant shall be required to furnish photographs of the building’s 
exterior as part of the Application request and also after the construction 
is completed, as a condition of final Grant reimbursement. 

m) No Applicant, nor Applicant’s agent, representative or tenant shall be 
entitled to receive Grant approval on the same property if requested 
within three (3) years from the date a previous Grant was awarded by the 
City of Belton. 

n) An Applicant must attend Historic Preservation Commission and City 
Council meetings when requested to do so by the Planning Department. 
Failure to attend city meetings when required shall be cause for rejection 
of the Application. 

II. Grant Guidelines: 

a) Applications will be considered in the order in which they are received 
based on availability of funds. If numerous Grant requests are received 
simultaneously, priority will be given to the qualified application that 
proposes the largest match. No Grants will be awarded for work that has 
already been initiated or completed. 

b) The Applicant is required to obtain all applicable City permits and City 
approvals required for the construction if a Grant is awarded. 

c) Applicants receiving approval by the City Council shall commence 
construction described within the Application within sixty (60) days from 
the date the Grant is awarded by the City of Belton. All Applicants must 
complete the construction described in the Application within one (1) year 
from the date the Grant is approved by the City Council. If the Applicant 



5  

is unable to commence construction within sixty (60) days from the date 
the Grant is approved or complete construction within one (1) year from 
the date the Grant is approved, the Applicant can submit a written request 
to City Council for an extension for the commencement. 

d) Grant recipients will agree to maintain improvements, essentially in the 
condition approved, for a period of time to be determined with 
consideration given to the total investment, the amount of Grant funds 
approved, and the relative value of the project. Grant funds must be 
replaced if the terms of the grant are not satisfied. 

e) Subsequent funding will be determined by annual budget allocations. 

f) Matching funds will be provided for each project at a 1:1 dollar match with 
a maximum grant of $10,000. A downtown building with two street facing 
facades is eligible for a maximum grant of $20,000. All work must be 
permanent improvements to the exterior to include signage. 

g) Only commercial buildings within the Downtown Development District 
are eligible. No Grants will be awarded for residential properties with 
exceptions being made for hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities, 
multi-family dwellings, and loft housing. 

h) All design plans (e.g. paint, color, sign size and proposed placement) must 
be approved by the Planning Department prior to receiving funds. Only 
those projects which meet appropriate design standards can be funded 
(see Tips for Rehabilitation and Secretary of the Interior Guidelines). 

i) Grants for painting will only be issued for facades that have been 
previously painted. 

j) Grants will be administered as reimbursements once projects have been 
completed as agreed upon and receipts are shown for work completed 
(after insurance claims). 

k) Building or business owners must apply for the Grant before restoration 
or renovation work has begun. No Grants will be awarded for work that 
had already been initiated. 

III. Reimbursement 

When the entire Grant project has been satisfactorily completed and reviewed, 
the applicant shall present the City of Belton with copies of all paid invoices, 



6  

including copies of cancelled checks and/or credit card receipts, for a single 
payment reimbursement of the approved funding.  

IV. Appeal Process 

The  City  of  Belton  City  Council  determination  shall  be  deemed  final  action 
regarding the application.   



7  

 

Applicant’s Name:  Date:  

Business Name:    

Contact Person:    

Mailing Address:    

Phone:  

E-mail: 

Details of Planned Improvements (attach additional paper if necessary).  
 

 

 

If you are using a contractor (not required), please list the names of contractors from whom 
you have received proposals (list in order of preference):  
1.   

2.  

3.  

Bids shall be submitted on the contractor’s letterhead and shall contain the contractor’s name, 
address, telephone number, and shall itemize the bid in a manner that allows city staff to determine 
the authenticity of the bid. If you are doing the work yourself, please have costs or bids prepared for 
materials and labor.  

Total cost of improvement project: $  

Amount of Grant requested: $_  

Planning Department   Date  
Recommended  
Rejected  

FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM  
APPLICATION   

Fax:  



8  

Amount to be paid by the applicant: $ 

Anticipated completion date:  

 

Applicant’s signature  Date  

 

I have met with the Planning Department, and I fully understand the Facade & Sign 
Reimbursement Grant Procedures and Details established by the Belton City Council. 

I intend to use this Grant program for the aforementioned renovation projects to forward the 
efforts of the downtown revitalization and historic preservation program.  

I have read the Facade Grant Application Procedures and Guidelines.  

I understand that, if I am awarded a Facade Improvement Incentive Grant by the City of Belton, 
any deviation from the approved project may result in the partial or total withdrawal of the Facade 
Improvement Grant. Upon completion, the facade must be maintained for a period of 3 years from 
the time of construction. If the facade is altered for any reason within 3 years of construction, I will 
be required to reimburse the City of Belton immediately for the full amount of the  Facade 
Improvement Grant.  

 
Business/Organization Name  

 

Building Owner’s Signature  Date  

Planning Director Recommendation  Date  

FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM   
AGREEMENT   



9  

Applicant’s Signature  Date  

 
Mayor Approval  Date  



10 

 

□ Meet with the Planning Director to determine eligibility and review Façade Improvement Incentive 

Grant Instructions. 

Complete the Facade Improvement Grant Application form and sign Agreement form. (Include all 
required attachments: contractor estimates, if applicable; photographs of building exterior and project 
plans. 

 Return completed application and agreement with required attachments to the Planning 
Department for inclusion in next City Council agenda. 

 Attend Historic Preservation Commission and/or City Council meeting to respond to 
any questions. 

 Once approved, facade improvement work must commence within sixty (60) days of approval by 
the Belton City Council and completed within one (1) year). 

 Obtain all applicable City permits and City approvals prior to the starting any work on the 
approved project. 

□  Upon completion of facade improvement project, furnish photographs of the bulding's exterior; 
copies of all paid invoices, including copies of canceled checks and/or credit card receipts to 
receive a single payment reimbursement of the approved funding. 

Please review the enclosed checklist to ensure all necessary materials are included.   
FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT  PROGRAM  

CHECKLIST   

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



11 

  
The rehabilitation tips listed below are recommendations and may not be eligible for grant funds.  

• Roof, foundation and structural items should be given priority over cosmetic improvements; 
however, these items are not eligible for grant funds 

• Carefully examine old buildings for termites, wood rot and general deterioration. 

• When repairing a building, do not cut expenses on the roof or the foundation. 

• Be aware of areas on the roof and at connecting walls where water does not readily drain. Flashing 
should be installed at intersections to prevent leakage. 

• Carefully locate air-conditioning units to avoid water condensations on the sides of buildings. 
Condensing units should be supported from the masonry walls and not placed directly on the roof. 

• The top brick cornices that project above the roof deteriorate rapidly unless they are capped with 
metal, terra cotta, stone or concrete. 

• When mortar is missing or in poor repair, moisture will enter the walls and eventually may cause 
structural damage. Deteriorated mortar should be removed to a depth of at least three-fourths of an 
inch and replaced with new mortar that matches the old in color, texture and striking of the joint. 

• Do not sandblast.   Chemicals and/or water can remove dirt and paint without damaging the surface 
of the building. 

• Do not paint too often; many times a building only needs mild washing. 

• If the building has stone or brick that has never been painted, do not create a maintenance problem 
by painting it. 

• Existing architectural details, including old wood doors, windows, ceilings, and trim work add to 
the character of a building and its resale value. Repair these features rather than remove them. 

• Wood windows are reasonable to repair, if a specialist in window repair can be found.   If the 
windows are missing, custom-made windows can be ordered for replacement in old buildings. 

• Pressed metal ceiling panels are still being manufactured today with some of the same patterns 
installed originally.  Deteriorated panels, therefore, can be replaced exactly. 

• Do not use aluminum siding.  It can hide water penetration into the walls and accelerate 
deterioration. 

• Before rehabilitating a building facade, take a careful look at the structural aspects of the building. 
Develop a design that is compatible with neighboring buildings. 

• Retain a sense of continuity by carrying exterior building design inside the structure. 

• Demand quality. 

FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT  
REHABILIATION TIPS   



12 

  
All Facade Improvement Incentive Grant applications will be reviewed by the Planning Department and, if 
required, the Historic Preservation Commission and then approved by the Belton City Council. The Planning 
Department, Historic Preservation Commission and the Belton City Council will maintain an awareness of the 
Standards of Rehabilitation as follows:  

1. Every reasonable effort shall be made to provide a compatible use for a property which requires 
minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use a property for 
its original intended purpose. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure, or site and its 
environment shall not be destroyed. The removal or alteration of any historic material or 
distinctive architectural features will disqualify any building from this program. 

3. All building, structures, and sites shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations 
that have no historical basis and which seek to create an earlier appearance shall be discouraged 
and may disqualify any building from this program. 

4. Changes which may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a building, structure, or site and its environment. These changes may have 
acquired significance in their own right, and this significance may be recognized and respected. 

5. Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced 
in composition, design, color, texture and other visual qualities. 

6. The surface cleaning of structures shall be undertaken with the gentlest means possible. 
Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will change or damage the historic building 
materials shall not be undertaken. 

7. Contemporary design for alteration and additions to existing properties shall not be 
discouraged when such alterations and additions do not destroy significant historical, 
architectural or cultural materials, and such design is compatible with the size, scale, color, 
material, and character of the property, neighborhood, or environment. 

8. Whenever possible, new additions or alterations to structures shall be done in such a manner 
that if such addition or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the structure would be unimpaired. New additions should be compatible to the 
present structure. 

SECRETARY OF THE  INTERIOR’S STANDARDS  
FOR REHABILITATION   



   



 

 

 

        

        

        

        

 



 

 

       
 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of office to 
newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Parks and Recreation – Matt Bates, Director 
 
Background 
 
In May 2007, the City Council authorized the formation of a Youth Advisory Commission 
(YAC), and the first one-year appointments were made in September 2007. The YAC is 
charged with: 
 
• Developing recommendations to the Council that focus on Belton’s quality of life, 

community facility and service enhancements, and other issues of importance to young 
people. 

• Making recommendations and advising the City Council concerning solutions to specific 
youth issues in the community. 

• Encouraging the initiation of programs of general interest to youth. 
• Enlisting the cooperation of all segments of the community in being more responsive to 

the youth community. 
• Making and issuing reports concerning its studies, research, examinations and other 

activities, and making annual reports to the City Council at such times as may be 
requested by the Council. 
 

For 2019-2020, we are proposing the following students be appointed to YAC: 

  

Last Name First Name Male/Female Grade School Volunteer Hours 

1 Baggerly Madden Female 12 BHS 19.5 

2 Krieg Gracie Female 12 BNTHS 10.5 

3 Jones Anthony Male 11 BHS 44.5 

4 Sturdivant Emma Female 12 BHS 23 

5 Romer Emma Female 10 BHS 26.5 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

6 Daniels Derrance Male 11 BNTHS 19.5 

7 Jones Madison Female 11 BHS 38.5 

8 Jimenez Jonah Male 12 BHS 19.5 

9 Page Mycah Male 12 BHS 13 

        
 
The proposed chair, Madden Baggerly, did a fantastic job shadowing last year’s chair, and I 
am recommending she be appointed as the Chair of the 2019-2020 YAC. 

 
City Attorney John Messer will conduct the swearing-in of the 2019-2020 YAC members. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
YAC Budget for FY2020: $1,000 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the appointments. 
 
Attachments 
 
None 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  August 27, 2019   
      Case No.: Z-19-16 

Request: Agricultural to Commercial Two  
(C-2) District 

      Applicant/Owner: Jeffrey Ling 
  

 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to Commercial 
Two District on approximately 1.11 acres located at 1272 S. Wheat Road, at the northwest 
corner of S. Wheat Road and I-14.  
 
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning:  Agricultural Proposed Zoning: Commercial Two 
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Commercial/Retail with Commercial Corridor 
Overlay 
 
Design Standards Type Area 4:   Primary intersections and cross roads of the I-35 and I-14 
(US 190) corridors; nodes projected for commercial, retail, and neighborhood service uses with 
a higher standard, as they are gateways to other areas.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This property was annexed into the city limits in 2002 and assigned the Agricultural Zoning 
District at that time. The applicant purchased this property in July and wishes to rezone this 
property to allow future retail/commercial uses.   
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
The site was previously occupied by Central Texas Marble. The property is currently not in use, 
although there are several structures on site, to include office and warehouse space, 
comprising approximately 8,000 sq. ft. The adjacent and surrounding properties to the north, 
south, east, and west are zoned Agricultural District. International Motors Auto Repair Services 
is located on the adjacent property to the west, and the adjacent property to the north is under 
the same ownership; property on the south side of I-14 is undeveloped or used residentially; 
and property on the east side of Wheat Road is the site Little Valley Auto Ranch’s Texas 
Exports. Belton Independent School District’s Chisholm Trail Elementary School is located just 
north of this site, and the Sendero Estates Subdivision is developing to the northwest. Belton 
Economic Development Corporation’s Business Park is located to the east along Digby Road. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 3   
 

The applicant plans to occupy one of the buildings for his business that entails general 
contractor work, and offer the other building for lease.  For the lease space, an exercise gym 
(CrossFit) is currently proposed, but the applicant has also had interest expressed for a cabinet 
shop. As a result, the applicant is requesting C-2 Zoning District since it would accommodate 
his business and either of these proposed uses.  
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The requested C-2 District will allow any of the uses identified below.  
  

• Any use permitted in the C-1, Retail, NS or Office Districts 
• Alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption—beer and wine sales only with less 

than 75% revenue from alcohol. All alcoholic beverage sales with 50% or less revenue 
from alcohol. 

• Commercial amusement (indoor or outdoor) 
• Auto sales new; auto servicing, and repair 
• Motorcycle sales, servicing, and repair 
• Off road vehicle sales, servicing and repair 
• Restaurant  
• Hotel or motel  
• Hospital or nursing home 
• Auto sales used 
• Auto parking lot or garage 
• Auto body repair and painting 
• Boat sales 
• Car wash 
• Carpentry, cabinet, painting, plumbing, welding shops 
• Funeral home 
• Furniture manufacture and upholstery shop 
• Commercial and wholesale dry cleaning 
• Equipment sales and rental (heavy) 
• Flea market (indoor) 
• Tractor sales; trailer and truck rental 
• Home improvement center; nursery and plant sales (outdoor storage) 
• Lumber yard 
• Manufactured or mobile home sales; portable building sales 
• Veterinarian with outside kennels 
• Mini storage warehouses 
• Open or outside storage uses—MUST BE SCREENED 

 
The applicant is aware that screening is required for any outside storage that may occur on 
site. The applicant has submitted a plat for a one lot subdivision that is currently under review. 
 
 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 3   
 

 
Area and Setback Requirements 
 
Minimum area and setback requirements for the requested C-2 Zoning District are summarized 
below: 
 
 Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft.  Front Yard Setback:  20’ 
 Lot Width: 50’    Rear Yard Setback:  15’ 
 Lot Depth: 100’    Side Yard Setback:  15’/20’ adjacent to street 
 
The property proposed for rezoning comprises approximately 1.11 acres and exceeds the 
minimum area requirements for the C-2 Zoning District. No new buildings are proposed, but 
should any be constructed, they must comply with these setback requirements.  
 
A certificate of occupancy is required for the change in use; therefore, the applicant must 
comply with all applicable building and fire codes, requirements for parking, signage, etc. and 
utility requirements.  
 
Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for retail and commercial 
use, with a commercial corridor overlay along I-14. This property lies just to the east of a 
projected lifestyle center near the intersection of I-14 and anticipated Lake to Lake Road. The 
requested C-2 Zoning District is consistent with the FLUM and commercial uses expected along 
a major corridor, and appears to be reasonable in this location.  
 
Recommendation  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on August 20, 2019 and unanimously 
recommended approval of this zoning change from Agricultural Zoning District to Commercial 
-2 District.  Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 
Attachments 
 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Owner notification list 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 



















1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Zach Krueger, Luke Potts, David 
Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, and Dave Covington. Members Ty Hendrick, Allison Turner and Stephanie 
O’Banion were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob van Til, Planner Tina 
Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
5. Z-19-16 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to 

Commercial Two District on approximately 1.11 acres located at 1272 S. Wheat Road, at the 
northwest corner of S. Wheat Road and I-14.   

 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit A). 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. Jeff Ling, 1272 Wheat Road, the owner of the property 
known as Z-19-16 stated he is talking with a Crossfit club to occupy the front of the building and the 
back warehouse would be used for his company Peerless Enterprises. He said he is available for 
questions. The public hearing was closed.  
 
Mr. Covington said it looks good. He asked Ms. Maxwell a general question about when a property 
needs a Certificate of Occupancy, which means it also must be brought up to current codes. Ms. 
Maxwell said there might be building codes that are applicable that weren’t applicable before. She 
gave an example of a restaurant use that would require more stringent fire protection. Mr. Ling 
provided a summary of proposed improvements and said the barbed wire fence will be removed and 
they will add a sidewalk on the I-14 side, which Crossfit will use, they will provide paved parking, 
paint the exterior and add trees/landscaping. They are considering a wooden wall on the exterior to 
soften the look a bit. It should be much improved, Mr. Ling said.  
 
Mr. Covington said properties on the outskirts of town, they are still zoned Agricultural and he is 
thinking when a building’s use is changed slightly and there are added costs of bringing it up to 
current codes, does the City allow variances on that very often? What’s the experience been? Ms. 
Maxwell said generally when a property is annexed, they are grandfathered in but when the use 
changes or they want to expand it, then they have to comply. When the zoning change is requested, 
that is when the Certificate of Occupancy and various code requirements are applicable.  For existing 
buildings, if they are not making changes, then the City is willing to work with them. There is a 
mechanism for appeal to the Housing Board of Adjustment, if the applicant feels it’s an unnecessary 
burden to comply with the building codes. It hasn’t been used very often, Ms. Maxwell said. Mr. 
Covington said he encourages Staff to be open to some exceptions if property owners change the use 
of a property and are finding it to be an unnecessary burden for upgrades, whether it’s fire or electrical 
codes, or other. Mr. Covington said he doesn’t want that to stifle growth. In regards to building codes, 
Ms. Maxwell said, Staff is limited in their ability to waive or make exceptions. For the Design 
Standards, Staff does have some flexibility, she said. For the building codes, the property owner 
would likely have to appeal to the Housing Board of Adjustment, she said. Mr. Covington said he 
understands this point in the case of a new building, but when a property owner is working to make 



2 
 

it cost-effective, he encourages the Staff to work to that end. Ms. Maxwell said they do their best to 
accommodate when possible.  
 
Mr. Covington made a motion to approve Z-19-16. Mr. Krueger seconded the motion. The motion 
was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-38 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL TO 
COMMERCIAL TWO DISTRICT ON A 1.11 ACRE TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO 
BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 4 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Jeffrey Ling, owner of the following described property has presented 
a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition 
with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing 
on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and 
a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of 
Belton was set for the 20th day of August, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, 
said district being described as follows: 

 
Approximately 1.11 acre at 1272 S. Wheat Road, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 27th day of August, 
2019, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural District to Commercial Two 
District, in accordance with Section 25–Commercial Two Zoning District, and the Design 
Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of this property must conform to the Commercial Two Zoning District in all 

respects. 
  

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 4 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscaping Standards 

 



 
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 27th day 
of August, 2019, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
27th day of August, 2019. 

 
 

 
__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT "A"



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  August 27, 2019   
      Case No.: Z-19-17 

Request: Agricultural and Commercial 
Highway (CH) to Commercial Two 
(C-2) District 

      Applicant/Owner: Dennis Cochran 
 
Agenda Item #10 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural and Commercial Highway 
Districts to Commercial Two District on approximately 3.8 acres located at 7879 S. I-35 Service 
Road, on the east side of I-35, across from Dillard Road.  
 
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning:  Agricultural & CH  Proposed Zoning: Commercial Two 
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Commercial/Retail with Commercial Corridor 
Overlay 
 
Design Standards Type Area 2:   Areas along I-35 and US 190; primarily commercial 
frontage uses with opportunities for mixed uses, hotels, restaurants, new car dealerships, multi-
story office, and other similar commercial uses.   
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
The portion of this property fronting along I-35 was annexed into the city limits in 2000 and 
zoned to Commercial Highway District in 2001.  The remaining portion of this property was 
annexed in 2016 and was assigned the Agricultural District at that time.  The applicant 
purchased this property in April and wishes to open a boat repair operation to include boat 
sales & servicing.   
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
There is currently a residence on this site along with various accessory buildings, to include a 
large barn that will be used for the repair/servicing work.  The adjacent property to the north is 
used residentially and the adjacent property to the south is undeveloped.  Both of these 
properties are zoned similarly with CH along the I-35 frontage and Agricultural zoning for the 
remainder.  The adjacent property to the east is zoned Agricultural District and is undeveloped.  
On the west side of I-35, property north of Dillard Road was zoned in 2004 to CH with a Specific 
Use Permit for outside storage for a landscape supply business.  Property on the south side of 
Dillard Road is zoned CH.  Both properties are undeveloped at this time. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 3   
 

Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The requested C-2 District will allow any of the uses identified below.  Some of these are also 
allowed in the current CH District along the I-35 frontage and are shown in black text.  Those 
in red italicized text are additional uses that are allowed in the C-2 District.  Those with the 
strikeout are uses that are currently allowed in the CH District but are not allowed in the 
requested C-2 District. 
  

• Any use permitted in the C-1, Retail, NS or Office Districts 
• Alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption—beer and wine sales only with less 

than 75% revenue from alcohol. All alcoholic beverage sales with 50% or less revenue 
from alcohol. 

• Commercial amusement (indoor or outdoor) 
• Auto sales new; auto servicing, and repair 
• Motorcycle sales, servicing, and repair 
• Off road vehicle sales, servicing and repair 
• Restaurant  
• Hotel or motel  
• Hospital or nursing home 
• Auto sales used 
• Auto parking lot or garage 
• Auto body repair and painting 
• Boat sales 
• Car wash 
• Carpentry, cabinet, painting, plumbing, welding shops 
• Funeral home 
• Furniture manufacture and upholstery shop 
• Commercial and wholesale dry cleaning 
• Equipment sales and rental (heavy) 
• Flea market (indoor) 
• Tractor sales; trailer and truck rental 
• Home improvement center; nursery and plant sales (outdoor storage) 
• Lumber yard 
• Manufactured or mobile home sales; portable building sales 
• Veterinarian with outside kennels 
• Mini storage warehouses 
• Open or outside storage uses—MUST BE SCREENED 
• Community or expo center 
• Multi family use 

 
Residential uses are not allowed in the requested C-2 Zoning District.  The applicant is aware 
that the existing residence is allowed to remain as a legal non-conforming use, but cannot be 
expanded or rebuilt if destroyed.  Screening is also required for any outside storage that may 
occur in conjunction with the proposed commercial use. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Area and Setback Requirements 
 
Minimum area and setback requirements for the requested C-2 Zoning District are summarized 
below: 
 
 Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft.  Front Yard Setback:  20’ 
 Lot Width: 50’    Rear Yard Setback:  15’ 
 Lot Depth: 100’    Side Yard Setback:  15’/20’ adjacent to street 
 
The property proposed for rezoning comprises approximately 3.8 acres and exceeds the 
minimum area requirements for the C-2 Zoning District.  No new buildings are proposed at this 
time, but should any be constructed, they must comply with these setback requirements and 
subdivision platting regulations for creation of a building site.   
 
A certificate of occupancy is required for the change in use; therefore, the applicant must 
comply with all applicable building and fire codes, requirements for parking, signage, etc. and 
utility requirements.   
 
Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for retail and commercial 
use, with a commercial corridor overlay along I-35. The requested C-2 Zoning District is 
consistent with the FLUM and commercial uses expected along a major corridor, and appears 
to be reasonable in this location.   
 
Recommendation  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on August 20, 2019 and unanimously 
recommended approval of this zoning change from Agricultural and Commercial Highway 
Zoning Districts to Commercial -2 District.  Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 
Attachments 
 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Owner notification list 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 





§̈¦35§̈¦35

FO
X R

D

AM
ITY

 SC
HO

OL
 RD

DILLARD RD

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

AM
ITY

 SC
HO

OL
 R

D

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

EXIT

ON
 RA

MP
EXIT

ON
 RA

MP

DILLARD RD

TAHUAYA RD

FO
X R

D

EXIT

ELM
E R

K IN G R D

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

Type Area 4

Type
Area 12 Type

Area 2

Type Area 12
Type Area 2

Type Area 2

AMITY

ELMERKING

HAMMER

TAHUAYA

HE
RIT

AG
E

SALADOPARK

RO
SE

YELLOWROSE

MEADOW

WORTH

CHISHOLM

DILLARD

WI
ND

MI
LL

HIL
L

EL
M

GR
OV

E

MILLER

SMITH DAIRY

BO
X K

SULPHURWELLS

SHADY
GROVE

SM
ITH

DA
IR

Y

AMITY

FO
X

AMITY
SCHOOL

ST
IN

NE
TT

 M
ILL

LEGEND
Z_19_17

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-19-17 Location Z-19-17 Location

0 500250
Feet µMap Date: 8/8/2019

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2019\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-19-17\Z-19-17 Location.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.Aerial Imagery Date: 2018

ZONING CHANGE:
CH & AG
to
C2

A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22, 22-1
A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22-1
3.87 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
DENNIS COCHRAN

7879 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

DILLARD RD

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

S INT
ER

ST
AT

E 35
S I

H 35
 SE

RV
ICE R

D

LEGEND
Z_19_17

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-19-17 Aerial Z-19-17 Aerial

0 10050
Feet µMap Date: 8/8/2019

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2019\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-19-17\Z-19-17 Aerial.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.Aerial Imagery Date: 2018

ZONING CHANGE:
CH & AG
to
C2

A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22, 22-1
A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22-1
3.87 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
DENNIS COCHRAN

7879 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

DILLARD RD

ON
 RA

MP

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

EXIT

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

EXIT

ON
 RA

MP

DILLARD RD

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

SUP-101SUP-101

CH

CH

A

CH

A

A

Zoning Location

Legend
CityLimits
Z_19_17

Current Zoning
Agricultural
Commercial Highway
Specific Use Permit

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-19-17 Zoning Z-19-17 Zoning

0 300150
Feet µMap Date: 8/8/2019

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2019\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-19-17\Z-19-17 Zoning.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
CH & AG
to
C2

A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22, 22-1
A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22-1
3.87 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
DENNIS COCHRAN

7879 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



44489

233351
205253

233358
18

69
6 4233 349

473566

44493

2 333 53

200' Property Owner
Notification Area

Legend
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Z_19_17
Tax Appraisal Parcels

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-19-17 Z-19-17

0 250 500125
Feet µMap Date: 8/8/2019 Aerial Imagery Date: 2018

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2019\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-19-17\Z-19-17.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
CH & AG
to
C2

A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22, 22-1
A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22-1
3.87 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
DENNIS COCHRAN

7879 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:







1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Zach Krueger, Luke Potts, David 
Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, and Dave Covington. Members Ty Hendrick, Allison Turner and Stephanie 
O’Banion were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob van Til, Planner Tina 
Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
6. Z-19-17 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural and 

Commercial Highway Districts to Commercial Two District on approximately 3.8 acres located 
at 7879 S. I-35 Service Road, on the east side of I-35, across from Dillard Road. 
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit B). 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, he closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Potts made a motion to approve Z-19-17. Mr. Locklin seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-39 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL AND 
COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY TO COMMERCIAL TWO DISTRICT ON A 3.8 ACRE 
TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN 
STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Dennis Cochran, owner of the following described property has 
presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said 
petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition 
and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance 
and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission 
of the City of Belton was set for the 20th day of August, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and 
adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
Approximately 3.8 acres at 7879 S. I-35 Service Road, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 27th day of August, 
2019, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural and Commercial Highway 
Districts to Commercial Two District, in accordance with Section 25–Commercial Two 
Zoning District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the 
Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of this property must conform to the Commercial Two Zoning District in all 

respects. 
  

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Building Design Standards 



c. Landscaping Standards 
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 27th day 
of August, 2019, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
27th day of August, 2019. 

 
 

 
__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



§̈¦35§̈¦35

FO
X R

D

AM
ITY

 SC
HO

OL
 RD

DILLARD RD

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

AM
ITY

 SC
HO

OL
 R

D

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

S I
NTE

RST
AT

E 3
5

EXIT

ON
 RA

MP
EXIT

ON
 RA

MP

DILLARD RD

TAHUAYA RD

FO
X R

D

EXIT

ELM
E R

K IN G R D

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

Type Area 4

Type
Area 12 Type

Area 2

Type Area 12
Type Area 2

Type Area 2

AMITY

ELMERKING

HAMMER

TAHUAYA

HE
RIT

AG
E

SALADOPARK

RO
SE

YELLOWROSE

MEADOW

WORTH

CHISHOLM

DILLARD

WI
ND

MI
LL

HIL
L

EL
M

GR
OV

E

MILLER

SMITH DAIRY

BO
X K

SULPHURWELLS

SHADY
GROVE

SM
ITH

DA
IR

Y

AMITY

FO
X

AMITY
SCHOOL

ST
IN

NE
TT

 M
ILL

LEGEND
Z_19_17

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-19-17 Location Z-19-17 Location

0 500250
Feet µMap Date: 8/8/2019

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2019\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-19-17\Z-19-17 Location.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.Aerial Imagery Date: 2018

ZONING CHANGE:
CH & AG
to
C2

A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22, 22-1
A0510BC G F LANKFORD, 22-1
3.87 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
DENNIS COCHRAN

7879 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:

EXHIBIT "A"



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 4   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 

Date: August 27, 2018 
Case No.: Z-19-18 
Request: Single Family Two (SF2) with 

Conservation Revitalization (CR) 
Overlay to SF2 w/ CR & Historic 
Preservation (HP) Overlay District  

Applicant: City of Belton 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #11 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider the following: 

A. a Local Historic Landmark Designation for the Standpipe property; and 
B. a zoning change from Single Family Two with Conservation and Revitalization 

Overlay District to Single Family Two with Conservation and Revitalization Overlay 
District and Historical Preservation Overlay District for a Local Historic Landmark 
Designation on approximately 2.30 acres located at 306 West Avenue I, bound by 
West Avenue I on the north, West Avenue J on the south, South Davis Street on the 
east, and Hughes Street on the west 

 
Originating Department: Planning – Cheryl Maxwell 

Administration – Bob Van Til, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator 
 
Current Zoning:  SF2 w/ CR Overlay  Proposed Zoning: SF2 w/ CR & HP Overlays 
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Mixed Use Center/Commercial Corridor 
 
Design Standards Type Area 8:  Central South West Belton generally encompassed by the 
following boundaries: Nolan Creek to the North; Avenue J to the South; HWY 317/ Main Street to 
East; and Loop 121 to the West; primarily the Southwest residential core of the City. Proposed 
primarily as a single family residential Type Area with various multi-family housing located within. 
Future redevelopment to occur in a manner that takes into account surrounding uses. 
 
Case Summary 
 
The City of Belton has submitted this application for a local historic landmark designation with 
Historic Preservation zoning overlay for the Belton Standpipe. The Belton Standpipe is listed on 
the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 4   
 

Zoning/Allowable Uses 
 
Subject to Council approval, this property is proposed for an historic preservation overlay zoning. 
Historic Preservation Overlay Zoning enables the city to balance base zoning/land use with 
preservation of historic assets, protecting significant architectural features and helping avoid 
inappropriate alterations. Historic Overlay Zoning requires public hearings before the Historic 
Preservation Commission (HPC), Planning & Zoning Commission, and City Council, so the City 
and the public have full and informed participation in the designation process. The base zoning 
for this property is Single Family 2 with Conservation Revitalization Overlay. The Single Family 2 
zoning allows for municipally-owned facilities and uses. The purpose of the Conservation 
Revitalization overlay is to present the opportunity for different residential developments and 
compatible selected services and uses that are needed for the comfort, economy and 
convenience of the neighborhood in an effort to stabilize and/or redevelop the area. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
In 2012, the Heritage Preservation Board and Planning and Zoning Commission recommended, 
and City Council approved, Ordinance 2012-18, which established Section 29 of the Zoning 
Ordinance entitled “Historic Preservation Overlay District”, and provided a process for the 
designation of historic properties. Following the establishment of the Historic Preservation Overlay 
District, 5 local historic districts were established. The buildings located within the boundaries of 
these local historic districts are now protected by, and subject to, all of the provisions of the 
ordinance governing alterations, demolition, and minimum maintenance standards.  
 
The City of Belton has several buildings and sites located outside of the established local historic 
districts which hold historical, architectural, or cultural significance. The City of Belton Historic 
Landmark Designation application process was approved recently by the HPC and City Council. 
It is in place to designate eligible properties as local landmarks and extend the benefits and 
responsibilities of the Historic Preservation Overlay zoning to these properties. Since the 
implementation of the 2012 Belton Historic Preservation Ordinance, no individual properties have 
been designated as local historic landmarks.  
  
The Belton Standpipe has been identified as a significant point of interest and recognized for its 
significance to the history of the city. There is evidence through newspaper articles and City 
Council minutes of the many discussions about the condition of the standpipe, public safety, and 
historical significance. 
 
In early 2017, the City hired ApolloBBC to evaluate the standpipe and provide recommendations 
for its preservation (see attached report). The recommendation is a phased approach to 
preservation to include the removal of the failing plaster and to ventilate the tower in phase one, 
and plaster replacement, new coat of paint and add a corrosion inhibitor in phase two.  
 
In the 2019-2023 Strategic Plan, the standpipe is mentioned during the following timeframes: 
 

• FY 2019 Near Term Priority: Standpipe/Water Tower Park assessment. 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 4   
 

• FY 2021 Priority 1 Goal:  Develop plans for Standpipe Park. 
• FY 2022 Priority 1 Goal: Construct Standpipe Park. 

 
In August of 2018, the Bell County Commissioner’s Court and the City Council approved a change 
to the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 (TIRZ) boundary to include approximately 7.86 acres 
in the vicinity of the Historic Standpipe site. There are several sources of funding available for the 
preservation of the standpipe to include Hotel-Motel Funds, TIRZ Funds, Bell County Historical 
Commission grants, Texas Historical Commission Grants, and various other state and federal 
grants. The use of funding sources through the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department are available 
for future park improvements and other amenities on the site, as determined through public 
discussion and community feedback.  
 
At the November 27, 2018, City Council meeting, Council unanimously approved adopting a 
medallion design for designated Local Historic Landmarks. This medallion design prominently 
displays an image of the Belton Standpipe, an historic structure of significance, located in a 
dominant position on a small rise in South Belton that symbolizes the ingenuity and forward 
thinking of Beltonians.  
 
As outlined in the Belton Historic Preservation Ordinance (2012-18) Section 29.7, a property that 
is already listed individually, or within an historic district on the National Register of Historic Places 
(NRHP), shall be considered eligible for designation as historic landmarks pursuant to the 
ordinance. The Belton Standpipe is already listed on the NRHP (see ‘Basis for Designation’ below) 
for local significance to community planning, development and engineering, and is a rare surviving 
example of an early reinforced concrete public works structure. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation to select the Belton Standpipe as the inaugural local landmark 
designation property. In doing so, the City is setting the example of pride in ownership of such an 
irreplaceable structure, and highlighting the significance of this structure - not only during its past 
use as a crucial element to the City’s public utilities, but its representation of the decisions made 
by the community to meet citizen needs, especially during periods of rapid growth.          
    
Basis for Designation 
 
Belton Standpipe Local Historic Landmark 
 
According to the National Register of Historic Places, properties may be nominated for 
designation as a local historic landmark based on historical, architectural, or cultural significance. 
These criterion are identified in the NRHP Historic Landmark Designation Application, Section 3, 
addressing Statement of Significance (See Attachment #8, Page 2). The Belton Standpipe is 
nominated for designation under Criterion A in the area of Community Planning and Development, 
for association with the initial provision of public services in Belton; and Criterion C, significant in 
the area of Engineering, as a rare surviving example of an early reinforced concrete public works 
structure.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 4 of 4   
 

The National Register of Historic Places includes the following statements of significance:  The 
Belton Standpipe was built in 1914 as a water tower for the City of Belton. No longer in use, the 
tower once was a crucial element of the town’s water system and one of its great points of pride. 
It was built at a time when Belton was experiencing rapid growth and its city leaders were 
attempting to modernize the town’s utilities. Concrete stand pipes such as this were once fairly 
common, but most were later replaced by steel water towers. The Belton Standpipe is a rare 
surviving example of its type. It is also significant as an early example of reinforced poured 
concrete construction, a technology which in the early 1900’s was just coming into wide use. 
 
The property proposed for designation is bound by West Avenue I, South Davis Street, West 
Avenue J, and Hughes Street. 

 
Recommendation 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission met on July 11, 2019 and unanimously recommended 
approval of the Local Historic Landmark Designation application for the Standpipe property.   
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on August 20, 2019 and unanimously recommended 
approval of this zoning change to add the Historical Preservation Overlay District for a Local 
Historic Landmark designation on the Standpipe property.   
 
Staff concurs with recommendations from both commissions. 
 
Council Action Needed:   

A. Approval of the Local Historic Landmark designation for the Standpipe property; and  
B. Approval of the Historical Preservation Overlay District for the Standpipe property.  

 
Attachments 
 
Zoning application 
Property location map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Owner notification list 
NRHP Historic Landmark Designation Application with Statement of Significance 
Photo 
TIRZ Expansion Map 
Approved Local Historic Landmark Medallion 
ApolloBBC Report 
HPC Minutes Excerpt 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

 

































































 
 

1 
 

Minutes of the  
Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Thursday, July 11, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 

The Historic Preservation Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Dorothy Coppin, Ann Carpenter, Sheila Donahue and 
Barrett Covington. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planner and HPO Kelly Atkinson, IT Specialist Ryan Brown and Planning Clerk Laura Livingston. 
Commission member Tammie Baggerly was absent.  

3. H-19-12 Hold a public hearing and consider a Local Historic Landmark Designation 
application for the Belton Standpipe, 306 West Avenue I, bound by West Avenue I on the 
north, West Avenue J on the south, South Davis Street on the east, and Hughes Street on the 
west. 
 
Ms. Atkinson presented the staff report (Exhibit A). 
 
Chair Donahue opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, she closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Ms. Coppin made a motion to approve item H-19-12. Mr. Covington seconded the motion. The item 
was approved with 4 ayes, 0 nays.  



1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Zach Krueger, Luke Potts, David 
Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, and Dave Covington. Members Ty Hendrick, Allison Turner and Stephanie 
O’Banion were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob van Til, Planner Tina 
Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
7. Z-19-18 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family two with 

Conservation and Revitalization overlay to Single Family Two with Conservation and 
Revitalization and Historic Preservation overlays for a Local Historic Landmark Designation 
on approximately 2.30 acres located at 306 West Avenue I, bound by West Avenue I on the 
north, West Avenue J on the south, South Davis Street on the east, and Hughes Street on the 
west. 

 
Ms. Maxwell introduced the staff report (Exhibit C). Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob 
van Til discussed the funding for the site.  
 
Mr. Potts asked about the residences near the standpipe and how might the zoning change affect it? 
Ms. Maxwell said the only property being rezoned is the standpipe property, so no zoning change 
will occur on the surrounding properties.  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, he closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Mr. Jarratt said this has been around awhile and as significant as it is, all everybody knows is that 
there is a big, concrete standpipe in Belton. If you have young enough kids, you probably practiced 
T-ball or a sporting event in that open property nearby, he said. Commenting on the timeline, Mr. 
Jarratt encouraged that the site improvement occurs sooner because it should be made into a place 
where people want to come. He said it’s a great spot in the City to have a nice park.  
 
Chair Baggerly agreed, and said it will be great for the neighborhood. He asked if this was the highest 
point in Belton? Ms. Maxwell said she was uncertain, but it might be.  
 
Mr. Robert Jordan, 305 West Avenue J, said he and his mom on cool evenings love to go out there 
and look over Belton and Temple. There is a direct line of site from the hill all the way to Temple, 
Mr. Jordan said, and he is happy to see the city is taking interest in restoring it.  
 
Mr. Locklin said he grew up with his grandmother living at the corner of Avenue H and Surghnor 
Street, about a block and a half a way. He remembers his father talking about playing baseball there 
and he’s very excited to see what will be done with this property.  
 
Ms. Susan Jordan, 305 West Avenue J, said the standpipe is as deep as it is tall. It is the only cement 
water tower left in Central Texas, she added. She is thrilled it will be saved.  
 



2 
 

Mr. Locklin made a motion to approve Z-19-18. Mr. Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-40 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM SINGLE FAMILY TWO WITH 
CONSERVATION AND REVITALIZATION OVERLAY TO SINGLE FAMILY TWO WITH 
CONSERVATION AND REVITALIZATION, AND HISTORICAL PRESERVATION 
OVERLAYS ON A 2.3 ACRE TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED 
UNDER TYPE AREA 8 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, owner of the following described property has 
presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said 
petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition 
and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance 
and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission 
of the City of Belton was set for the 20th day of August, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and 
adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
Approximately 2.3 acres at 306 West Avenue I, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 27th day of August, 
2019, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Single Family Two with Conservation 
and Revitalization Overlay to Single Family Two with Conservation and Revitalization, 
and Historical Preservation Overlays, in accordance with Section 11–Single Family Two 
Zoning District, Section 30—Conservation and Revitalization Overlay District, Section 
29—Historical Preservation Overlay District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 
2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton 
is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of this property must conform to the Single Family Two, Conservation 

Revitalization Overlay, and Historical Preservation Overlay Districts in all respects. 
  

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 8 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 



This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 27th day 
of August, 2019, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
27th day of August, 2019. 

 
 

 
__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT "A"



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
       Date:  August 27, 2019  
       Case No.: P-19-23  

Sundin Addition (Park Place 
Subdivision, Phase II) 

       Request: Residential Replat 
       Applicant: Chuck Lucko 

Owner: Norma Sundin, Paul Sundin, 
& Judy Nicholson 

Agenda Item #12 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of Sundin Addition (Park Place Subdivision, 
Phase II), a replat of Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block 1, Park Place Subdivision, Phase I, to consolidate 
three lots into two lots at 1720 Landmark Drive, on the west side of Landmark Drive, south of 
Hastings Road.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Single Family Two (SF2)   
    
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Residential  
 
Design Standards Type Area 14: Projected as primarily single lot residential developments 
with city sewer. 
 
Case Summary 
 
This replat consolidates three lots into two. The original subdivision, Park Place Subdivision, 
Phase I, was approved in 1986, along with restrictive covenants. Although the city does not 
enforce restrictive covenants, there are provisions in the Subdivision Ordinance that apply to 
replats when the restrictive covenants are applicable. This replat appears to have satisfied 
requirements that would enable it to be processed administratively, except for some uncertainty 
with regard to the covenants of the original subdivision. As a result, public notice and public 
hearings are required. Therefore, the replat has to meet two approval thresholds: a) City 
subdivision standards; and b) subdivision restrictive covenants. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Our Subdivision Ordinance (Section 304.02) allows replats to be processed administratively 
under certain conditions as noted below: 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 2 of 3   
 

 
1) The owners of all the lots join in the application for amending the plat; 
2) The amendment does not attempt to remove recorded covenants or restrictions; 
3) The amendment does not increase the number of lots; and 
4) The amendment does not create or require the creation of a new street or make 

necessary the extension of municipal facilities. 
 
This replat appears to meet all conditions, except with regard to the covenants/restrictions. The 
owners have indicated they will not remove any existing covenants, but will carry them forward 
into this replat through a note on the plat and a plat dedication instrument. However, one of the 
deed restrictions prohibits any lot from being subdivided. Note wording below—Article Eight, 
#6: 
 

No lot shall ever be subdivided. However, two or more lots may be combined  
to provide a larger building site for a residence. 

 
Lot 2 is being subdivided, and then combined with the adjacent lots 1 and 3, to create new 
larger lots 1 & 2, Block 1. Based on advice from the City Attorney’s office, the replat does not 
appear to be in compliance with Article Eight, #6 above; however, the result of the consolidation 
provides larger building sites than the original three lots. With the uncertainty about the 
covenants application here, staff determined that the replat did not qualify for administrative 
approval and therefore is processing this as a residential replat with public notice and public 
hearings. As such, if 20% or more of the property owners of lots in the current plat file a written 
protest, the Planning Commission must require written approval of 66 2/3 % of the owners of 
all lots in the plat (Subdivision Ordinance Section 301.03). There are 30 property owners; if 6 
protest the replat, then approval of 20 property owners is required for this replat to be approved. 
As of this time, we have not received any written protest. City legal staff has also recommended 
the name of the replat be changed to reflect a phase of the original subdivision, since this is a 
replat of a portion of the original plat. Therefore, the subdivision name will be Park Place 
Subdivision, Phase II. To minimize confusion, we have kept the proposed name “Sundin” on 
the agenda since the public hearing notice was sent to property owners with this name, as 
submitted. 
 
This property is zoned SF2 District. Each lot satisfies all area requirements for the SF2 Zoning 
District as noted below: 
 

Minimum lot area: 7,500 sq. ft. 
Minimum lot width:  60’ 
Minimum lot depth: 100’ 
Front yard setback: 25’ 
Rear yard setback: 20’  
Side yard setback: 6’ with 15’ on a corner lot adjacent to a street; 20’ if garage entry 

 
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this 
subdivision replat. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 27, 2019 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Water/Sewer: There is an existing 8-inch water line and 6-inch sewer line along Landmark 
Drive. The existing fire hydrant location satisfies minimum requirements for fire protection. No 
utility extensions are needed. 
 
Drainage: No drainage easements or infrastructure is needed. 
 
Streets/Sidewalks: Landmark Drive is a local street, with a 50’ ROW, 31’ pavement width, 
with curb/gutter. No perimeter street improvements are needed. No sidewalks are required 
along local streets.  
 
Parkland Dedication/Fees: The parkland fee is $200 per residential unit, or $200 for this two 
lot subdivision. Since this is replat reducing the number of lots, this fee is not applicable.  
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the replat and find it acceptable as a final plat. All conditions 
have been satisfied for the City subdivision requirements. Nevertheless, the Planning 
Commission needs to be cognizant of the existing restrictive covenants and owner response 
to the proposed replat.  

P&ZC Meeting Update 

A public hearing regarding this replat was held at the August 20, 2019 P&ZC meeting.  No one 
spoke in opposition to this replat or provided written protest. The P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval. 

Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on August 20, 2019 and unanimously 
recommended approval of this replat, subject to the conditions below.  Staff concurs with their 
recommendation. 
 

1. Compliance with existing restrictive covenants, or approval by property owners in the 
original subdivision, as required for a residential replat when lots are being subdivided. 

2. Restrictive covenants for the original subdivision carried forward for the replat. 
3. Name change to Park Place Subdivision, Phase II on all documents. 

 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Original subdivision boundary (notification area) 
Replat notice to property owners 
Owner notification list 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 

















1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Zach Krueger, Luke Potts, David 
Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, and Dave Covington. Members Ty Hendrick, Allison Turner and Stephanie 
O’Banion were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Bob van Til, Planner Tina 
Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
8. P-19-23 Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of Sundin Addition (Park Place 

Subdivision, Phase II), a replat of Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block 1, Park Place Subdivision, Phase I, to 
consolidate three lots into two lots at 1720 Landmark Drive, on the west side of Landmark 
Drive, south of Hastings Road.   
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit D). 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, he closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Mr. Jarratt said he thinks this is a great idea. As you go up that hill, the topography of the lots will 
lend themselves to further development if divided into two pieces, he said. Chair Baggerly said he 
agrees and thinks the intent of the current restrictive covenants may not necessarily be worded 
correctly. Mr. Covington said he thinks what is happening is within the spirit of the covenants.  
 
Mr. Covington made a motion to approve P-19-23. Mr. Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 



AD VALOREM TAX RATE Fiscal Year 2020 
Tax Rate Public Hearing



CERTIFIED TAX ROLL

Comparison of Tax Rolls FY 2019 FY 2020 Change

Total Market Value $1,551,925,886 $1,850,609,838 $298,683,952
Less State Mandated Reductions
10% Residential Cap ($2,388,004) ($20,021,105) ($17,633,101)
Ag Value Loss ($14,127,158) ($21,988,039) ($7,860,881)
Totally Exempt Property ($366,775,657) ($484,119,629) ($117,343,972)
Veteran's Partial ($3,131,909) ($3,267,621) ($135,712)
Veteran's 100% HS ($27,367,384) ($35,611,193) ($8,243,809)
Local Options:
Abatements ($4,927,359) ($5,020,749) ($93,390)
Charitable Organizations ($444,647) ($846,769) ($402,122)
Over 65 ($11,290,269) ($11,633,120) ($342,851)
Disabled ($1,135,581) ($1,130,148) $5,433
Pollution Control ($184,575) ($117,830) $66,745
Taxable Value $1,120,153,343 $1,266,853,635 $146,700,292

($583,756,203) Value Lost to Exemptions
($3,851,623) Tax Lost to Exemptions


tax roll as billed

		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6374

				Certified		Effective		Current		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Rate		Rate		FY 2014



		Total Market Value		$1,551,925,886		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838

		Less State Mandated Reductions

		10% Residential Cap		($2,388,004)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)

		Ag Value Loss		($14,127,158)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)

		Totally Exempt Property		($366,775,657)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)

		Veteran's Partial		($3,131,909)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)

		Veteran's 100% HS		($27,367,384)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)

		Local Options:

		Abatements		($4,927,359)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)

		Charitable Organizations		($444,647)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)

		Over 65		($11,290,269)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)

		Disabled		($1,135,581)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)

		Pollution Control		($184,575)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)



		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465



		O&M Tax Rate		$0.5650		$0.5292		$0.5712		$0.5713		$0.5488

		Debt Service Tax Rate		$0.0948		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886

		Total Tax Rate		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6374



		Change from current rate		n/a		($0.0420)		$0.0000		$0.0001		($0.0224)



		Total Tax Levy		$7,390,772		$7,826,622		$8,358,700		$8,359,967		$8,075,676

		Estimated Collections - 97%		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$8,107,939		$8,109,168		$7,833,406



				FY 2019		FY 2020

				$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6598

				Certified		Effective		Current		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Rate		Rate		FY 2014



		TIRZ Value		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669

		Tirz Levy		$904,768		$847,175		$904,768		$904,905		$874,052

		TIRZ at 97% Collection		$877,625		$821,759		$877,625		$877,758		$847,830



		GENERAL FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$6,139,000		$6,503,064		$7,019,180		$7,020,409		$6,744,545

		Payment to TIRZ		($751,528)		($703,909)		($759,775)		($759,908)		($729,980)

		Net GF Current AV Taxes		$5,387,472		$5,799,155		$6,259,405		$6,260,501		$6,014,565



		DEBT SERVICE FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$1,030,048		$1,088,759		$1,088,759		$1,088,759		$1,088,861

		Payment to TIRZ		($126,097)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)

		Net DS Current AV Taxes		$903,951		$970,909		$970,909		$970,909		$971,010





		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6374

				Certifed 		Effective		Current		Rollback		Rollback

		Effect on GF Revenue:		Roll		Rate		Rate		Rate		Rate

		Inc (Dec) from Prior Year		-----		$411,682		$871,933		$873,029		$627,093

		Inc (Dec) from Effective Rate		-----		$0		$460,250		$461,346		$215,411

		Inc (Dec) from Current Rate		-----		($460,250)		$0		$1,096		($244,840)

		Inc (Dec) from Rollback Rate		-----		($461,346)		($1,096)		$0		($245,935)



		Each $1M of Tax Value@97%		$6,400		$5,993		$6,400		$6,401		$6,183

		Penny Tax @ 97% Collection		$108,655		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$122,896

		Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ		$95,353		$109,583		$109,583		$109,583		$109,595





		Value of Average Home in Belton		$164,329		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118

		Tax on Average Home		$1,084		$1,094		$1,169		$1,169		$1,129







tax roll



		Comparison of Tax Rolls		FY 2019		FY 2020		Change



		Total Market Value		$1,551,925,886		$1,850,609,838		$298,683,952

		Less State Mandated Reductions

		10% Residential Cap		($2,388,004)		($20,021,105)		($17,633,101)

		Ag Value Loss		($14,127,158)		($21,988,039)		($7,860,881)

		Totally Exempt Property		($366,775,657)		($484,119,629)		($117,343,972)

		Veteran's Partial		($3,131,909)		($3,267,621)		($135,712)

		Veteran's 100% HS		($27,367,384)		($35,611,193)		($8,243,809)

		Local Options:

		Abatements		($4,927,359)		($5,020,749)		($93,390)

		Charitable Organizations		($444,647)		($846,769)		($402,122)

		Over 65		($11,290,269)		($11,633,120)		($342,851)

		Disabled		($1,135,581)		($1,130,148)		$5,433

		Pollution Control		($184,575)		($117,830)		$66,745

		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$146,700,292

														Approximate Increase in Taxable Value: 		13.10%

		($583,756,203)		Value Lost to Exemptions

		($3,851,623)		Tax Lost to Exemptions























































certified roll

		Budget FY 2020

CRISTY DANIELL: CRISTY DANIELL:
		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6698		$0.6801		$0.6599		$0.6598

				Certified		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current with		1 Cent Increase		Current M&O		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Buydown of Debt		With DS Inc		Rate		FY 2014



		Total Market Value		$1,551,925,886		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838

		Less State Mandated Reductions

		10% Residential Cap		($2,388,004)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)

		Ag Value Loss		($14,127,158)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)

		Totally Exempt Property		($366,775,657)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)

		Veteran's Partial		($3,131,909)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)

		Veteran's 100% HS		($27,367,384)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)

		Charitable Organizations		($444,647)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)

		Pollution Control		($184,575)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)

		Local Options:		$0

		Abatements		($4,927,359)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)

		Over 65		($11,290,269)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)

		Disabled		($1,135,581)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)

		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635



		O&M Tax Rate		$0.5650		$0.5292		$0.5362		$0.5285		$0.5488		$0.5488		$0.5488		$0.5690		$0.5488

		Debt Service Tax Rate		$0.0948		$0.0886		$0.1110		$0.1313		$0.1110		$0.1210		$0.1313		$0.1313		$0.1110

		Total Tax Rate		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6698		$0.6801		$0.7003		$0.6598



		Change from current rate		n/a		($0.0420)		($0.0126)		$0.0000		$0.0000		$0.0100		$0.0203		$0.0405		$0.0000



		Total Tax Levy		$7,390,772		$7,826,622		$8,199,077		$8,358,700		$8,358,700		$8,485,386		$8,615,872		$8,871,776		$8,358,700

		Estimated Collections - 97%		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$7,953,104		$8,107,939		$8,107,939		$8,230,824		$8,357,395		$8,605,623		$8,107,939





		TIRZ Value		$137,127,669		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635

		Tirz Levy		$904,768		$7,826,622		$8,199,077		$8,358,700		$8,358,700		$8,485,386		$8,615,872		$8,871,776		$8,358,700

		TIRZ at 97% Collection		$877,625		$7,591,823		$7,953,104		$8,107,939		$8,107,939		$8,230,824		$8,357,395		$8,605,623		$8,107,939



		GENERAL FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$6,139,000		$6,503,064		$6,589,083		$6,494,462		$6,743,918		$6,743,918		$6,743,918		$6,992,145		$6,743,918

		Payment to TIRZ		($751,528)		($6,503,064)		($6,589,083)		($6,494,462)		($6,743,918)		($6,743,918)		($6,743,918)		($6,992,145)		($6,743,918)

		Net GF Current AV Taxes		$5,387,472		($0)		($0)		$0		$0		$0		($0)		$0		$0



		DEBT SERVICE FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$1,030,048		$1,088,759		$1,364,021		$1,613,477		$1,364,021		$1,486,906		$1,613,477		$1,613,477		$1,364,021

		Payment to TIRZ		($126,097)		($1,088,759)		($1,364,021)		($1,613,477)		($1,364,021)		($1,486,906)		($1,613,477)		($1,613,477)		($1,364,021)

		Net DS Current AV Taxes		$903,951		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0





		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6698		$0.6801		$0.6599

				Certifed 		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current with		1 Cent Increase		Current M&O		Rollback

		Effect on GF Revenue:		Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Buydown of Debt		With DS Inc		Rate

		Inc (Dec) from Prior Year		-----		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)		($5,387,472)

		Inc (Dec) from Effective Rate		-----		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		($0)		$0

		Inc (Dec) from Buy Down Rate		-----		($0)		$0		$0		$0		$0		($0)		$0

		Inc (Dec) from Current Rate		-----		($0)		($0)		$0		$0		($0)		($0)		($0)

		Inc (Dec) from Current w/Buy Down				($0)		($0)		($0)		$0		($0)		($0)		($0)

		Ince (Dec) from 1 Cent w/Buy Down				($0)		($0)		$0		$0		$0		($0)		$0

		Inc (Dec) from M&O + Full Debt Rate				$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0

		Inc (Dec) from Rollback Rate		-----		($0)		($0)		$0		$0		($0)		($0)		$0



		Each $1M of Tax Value@97%		$6,400		$5,993		$6,278		$6,400		$6,400		$6,497		$6,597		$6,793

		Penny Tax @ 97% Collection		$108,655		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885

		Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ		$95,353		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0		$0



		Value of Average Home in Belton		$164,329		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118

		Tax on Average Home		$1,084		$1,094		$1,146		$1,169		$1,169		$1,186		$1,205		$1,169







cert roll for power pt

		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6374		$0.6599		$0.6374

				Certified		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current M&O		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		With DS Inc		Rate		FY 2014



		Total Market Value		$1,551,925,886		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838

		Less State Mandated Reductions

		10% Residential Cap		($2,388,004)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		($20,021,105)		-1.08%

		Ag Value Loss		($14,127,158)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		($21,988,039)		-1.19%

		Totally Exempt Property		($366,775,657)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		($484,119,629)		-26.16%

		Veteran's Partial		($3,131,909)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		($3,267,621)		-0.18%

		Veteran's 100% HS		($27,367,384)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		($35,611,193)		-1.92%		($234,963)

		Local Options:														$0		0.00%

		Abatements		($4,927,359)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		($5,020,749)		-0.27%

		Charitable Organizations		($444,647)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		($846,769)		-0.05%

		Over 65		($11,290,269)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		($11,633,120)		-0.63%

		Disabled		($1,135,581)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		($1,130,148)		-0.06%

		Pollution Control		($184,575)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		($117,830)		-0.01%



		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020												-31.54%

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6768		$0.6599		$0.6374

				Certified		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current M&O		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		With DS Inc		Rate		FY 2014



		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465



		O&M Tax Rate		$0.5650		$0.5292		$0.5712		$0.5712		$0.5488		$0.5713		$0.5488

		Debt Service Tax Rate		$0.0948		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886

		Total Tax Rate		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6374		$0.6599		$0.6374



		Change from current rate		n/a		($0.0420)		$0.0000		$0.0000		($0.0224)		$0.0001		($0.0224)



		Total Tax Levy		$7,390,772		$7,826,622		$8,359,478		$8,358,700		$8,075,676		$8,359,967		$8,075,676

		Estimated Collections - 97%		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$8,108,693		$8,107,939		$7,833,406		$8,109,168		$7,833,406



		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6768		$0.6599		$0.6374

				Certified		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current M&O		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		With DS Inc		Rate		FY 2014



		TIRZ Value		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669

		Tirz Levy		$904,768		$847,175		$904,768		$904,768		$874,052		$904,905		$874,052

		TIRZ at 97% Collection		$877,625		$821,759		$877,625		$877,625		$847,830		$877,758		$847,830



		GENERAL FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$6,139,000		$6,503,064		$7,019,833		$7,019,180		$6,744,545		$7,020,409		$6,744,545

		Payment to TIRZ		($751,528)		($703,909)		($759,775)		($759,775)		($729,980)		($759,908)		($729,980)

		Net GF Current AV Taxes		$5,387,472		$5,799,155		$6,260,058		$6,259,405		$6,014,565		$6,260,501		$6,014,565



		DEBT SERVICE FUND

		Current Ad Valorem		$1,030,048		$1,088,759		$1,088,861		$1,088,759		$1,088,861		$1,088,759		$1,088,861

		Payment to TIRZ		($126,097)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)		($117,850)

		Net DS Current AV Taxes		$903,951		$970,909		$971,010		$970,909		FALSE		$970,909		$971,010





		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6374		$0.6599

				Certified 		Effective		Effective with		Current		Current M&O		Rollback

		Effect on GF Revenue:		Roll		Rate		Buydown of Debt		Rate		With DS Inc		Rate

		Inc (Dec) from Prior Year		-----		$411,682		$872,586		$871,933		$627,093		$873,029

		Inc (Dec) from Effective Rate		-----		$0		$460,903		$460,250		$215,411		$461,346

		Inc (Dec) from Current Rate		-----		($460,250)		$653		$0		($244,840)		$1,096

		Inc (Dec) from Rollback Rate		-----		($461,346)		($443)		($1,096)		($245,935)		$0



		Each $1M of Tax Value@97%		$6,400		$5,993		$6,400		$6,400		$6,183		$6,401

		Penny Tax @ 97% Collection		$108,655		$122,885		$122,896		$122,885		$122,896		$122,885

		Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ		$95,353		$109,583		$109,595		$109,583		$109,595		$109,583





		Value of Average Home in Belton		$164,329		$177,118		$131,764		$177,118		$131,764		$177,118

		Tax on Average Home		$1,084		$1,094		$853		$1,169		$840		$1,169

		Change from current year		N/A		$10		$85		$85				$85







		Starting with FY 2018 budget presentations, using the consolidated chart below instead of multiple charts

		Budget FY 2020		FY 2019		FY 2020		$0		$0		$0		$0

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6472		$0.6598		$0.6768		$0.6599

				Current Rate		Effective Rate		Effective with		Current Rate		Current M&O		Rollback Rate



		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,971,465		$1,266,853,635



		O&M Tax Rate		$0.5650		$0.5292		$0.5712		$0.5712		$0.5488		$0.5713

		Debt Service Tax Rate		$0.0948		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886

		Total Tax Rate		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6598		$0.6374		$0.6599

		Change from current rate				($0.0420)		$0.6598		$0.0000		($0.0224)		$0.0001



		Total Tax Levy		$7,390,772		$7,826,622		$8,359,478		$8,358,700		$8,075,676		$8,359,967

		Estimated Collections - 97%		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$8,108,693		$8,107,939		$7,833,406		$8,109,168



		Current Ad Valorem		$6,139,000		$6,503,064		$7,019,833		$7,019,180		$6,744,545		$7,020,409

		Payment to TIRZ		($751,528)		($703,909)		($759,775)		($759,775)		($729,980)		($759,908)

		Net General Fund Current AV Taxes		$5,387,472		$5,799,155		$6,260,058		$6,259,405		$6,014,565		$6,260,501



		Each $1M of Tax Value@97%		$6,400		$5,993		$6,400		$6,400		$6,183		$6,401

		Penny Tax @ 97% Collection		$108,655		$122,885		$122,896		$122,885		$122,896		$122,885

		Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ		$95,353		$109,583		$109,595		$109,583		$109,595		$109,583



		Value of Average Home in Belton		$164,329		$177,118		$131,764		$177,118		$131,764		$177,118

		Tax on Average Home		$1,084		$1,094		$853		$1,169		$840		$1,169

		Change from current year				$10		$85		$85		$0		$85





for ph

		Budget FY 2020		FY 2016		FY 2017

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6598

				Certified		Effective		Proposed		Rollback		Adopted Rate

				Roll		Rate		Rate		Rate		Tax Role Billed



		Total Market Value		$1,551,925,886		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838		$1,850,609,838

		Less Exempt & Exemptions		($431,772,543)		($583,756,203)		($583,756,203)		($583,756,203)		$1,015,806,097

		Taxable Value		$1,120,153,343		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$1,266,853,635		$834,803,741



		TIRZ Value		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$137,127,669		$83,043,501

		Non-TIRZ Value		$983,025,674		$1,129,725,966		$1,129,725,966		$1,129,725,966		$751,760,240



		O&M Tax Rate		$0.5650		$0.5292		$0.5712		$0.5713		$0.5488

		Debt Service Tax Rate		$0.0948		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.0886		$0.1110

		Total Tax Rate		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599		$0.6598



		Change from current rate		N/A		($0.0420)		$0.0000		$0.0001		$0.0000



		Total Tax Levy		$7,390,772		$7,826,622		$8,358,700		$8,359,967		$5,508,035

		Estimated Collections - 97%		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$8,107,939		$8,109,168		$5,342,794



		Revenue by Fund:

		General Fund		$5,387,472		$5,799,155		$6,259,405		$6,260,501		$4,001,890

		Debt Service		$903,951		$970,909		$970,909		$970,909		$809,420

		TIRZ		$877,625		$821,759		$877,625		$877,758		$531,483

		Total		$7,169,049		$7,591,823		$8,107,939		$8,109,168		$5,342,794

		Total Tax Levy		FY 2016		FY 2017

		Comparison of Tax Rates		$0.6598		$0.6178		$0.6598		$0.6599

				Certified		Effective		Proposed		Rollback		($1,385,582)

				Roll		Rate		Rate		Rate		($1,797,264)

		Effect on GF Revenue:										($2,257,514)

		Inc (Dec) from Prior Year		-----		$411,682		$871,933		$873,029		($2,258,610)

		Inc (Dec) from Effective Rate		-----		$0		$460,250		$461,346		$0

		Inc (Dec) from Current Rate		-----		($460,250)		$0		$1,096

		Inc (Dec) from Rollback Rate		-----		($461,346)		($1,096)		$0

												$6,400

		Each $1M of Tax Value@97%		$6,400		$5,993		$6,400		$6,401		$80,976

		Penny Tax @ 97% Collection		$108,655		$122,885		$122,885		$122,885		$72,921

		Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ		$95,353		$109,583		$109,583		$109,583

												$132,391

		Value of Average Home in Belton		$164,329		$177,118		$177,118		$177,118		$874

		Tax on Average Home		$1,084		$1,094		$1,169		$1,169		($210)

		Change from current year		N/A		$10		$85		$85





Growth

				$1,266,853,635		FY 2020 Taxable

				$1,120,153,343		FY 2019 Taxable

				$146,700,292		Increase in Taxable Value

				13.10%		% Increase in Taxable Value

				$34,723,185		New Taxable Value

				$111,977,107		Appraisal Growth

				$146,700,292		Increase in Taxable Value

				3.10%		% Increase due to New Value

				10.00%		% Increase due to Appraisal Growth

				13.10%		% Increase in Taxable Value





Rate Compare

						FY 2018- Tax Year 2017

						Property Tax Base (Per Budget)		Property Tax Rate		Budgeted Sales Tax Revenue		Relief rate		Ad Valorem Buy Down		Rate equivalent		Rate without buy-down				Econ Dev Funding

				Killeen		5,352,339,761		0.7498		22,267,439		0.50%		7,422,480		0.1387		0.8885				$362,527

				Temple		3,970,340,738		0.6572		20,870,000		0.50%		6,956,667		0.1752		0.8324				1,565,250		$   1,565,250.00

				Harker Heights		1,699,770,813		0.6770		6,500,000		0.50%		2,166,667		0.1275		0.8045				25,000

				Copperas Cove		1,184,912,086		0.7979		4,343,835		0.00%		0		0.0000		0.7979				1,447,945

				Belton		997,593,915		0.6598		4,789,536		0.00%		0		0.0000		0.6598				1,596,512







						Property Tax Base (Per Budget)		Property Tax Rate		Budgeted Sales Tax Revenue		Relief rate		Ad Valorem Buy Down		Rate equivalent		Rate with buy-down

				Belton (alt)		997,593,915		0.6598		4,789,536		0.50%		1,596,512.00		0.1600		0.4998











												997,593,915

				Recalc

				Existing		GF		DS		Total

				Rate		0.5332		0.1266		0.6598

				Current Ad Valorem		5,159,595.63		1,225,065.28		6,384,660.91

				Adjusted		GF		DS		Total

				Rate		0.3732		0.1266		0.4998

				Current Ad Valorem		3,610,978.99		1,225,065.28		4,836,044.27

								S/B close to EDC funding		1,548,616.64



FY 2017 Budget

Ad Valorem Rate	



Killeen	Temple	Harker Heights	Copperas Cove	Belton	Belton (alt)	0.74980000000000002	0.65720000000000001	0.67700000000000005	0.79790799999999995	0.65980000000000005	0.49976373915332073	Sales for Property Tax Relief	



Killeen	Temple	Harker Heights	Copperas Cove	Belton	Belton (alt)	0.13867728877659841	0.17521585994080155	0.12746816512531012	0	0	0.1600362608466793	

0.88847728877659837	0.83241585994080158	0.80446816512531016	0.79790799999999995	0.65980000000000005	0.65980000000000005	







HISTORICAL VALUES

Highest tax rate in the last 15 years was $0.7350 in 2004
Last time tax rate was above $0.70 was FY 2005 at $0.7050
Annualized Non-TIRZ growth has been 5.81% since creation of TIRZ
FY 2020 Non-TIRZ growth is 9.74%

Fiscal Tax Appraised % Taxable % Tax %
Year Year Tax Rate Value Change Value Change Levy Collections % TIRZ Value Change

2006 2005 $0.6750 $681,292,912 11.30% $502,019,398 14.18% $3,388,414 3,300,813$       97.41% 12,618,404$     
2007 2006 $0.6550 $750,068,830 10.09% $569,777,215 13.50% $3,730,314 3,647,857$       97.79% 26,686,436$     111.49%
2008 2007 $0.6550 $821,610,708 9.54% $626,671,977 9.99% $4,104,701 4,023,508$       98.02% 34,863,608$     30.64%
2009 2008 $0.6550 $885,807,551 7.81% $694,953,743 10.90% $4,551,947 4,455,311$       97.88% 46,662,236$     33.84%
2010 2009 $0.6550 $920,295,495 3.89% $719,733,740 3.57% $4,746,286 4,629,436$       97.54% 51,798,069$     11.01%
2011 2010 $0.6550 $1,003,315,239 9.02% $747,923,436 3.92% $4,898,899 4,755,548$       97.07% 54,484,927$     5.19%
2012 2011 $0.6540 $1,057,699,156 5.42% $767,959,433 2.68% $5,022,455 4,916,417$       97.89% 64,001,446$     17.47%
2013 2012 $0.6598 $1,113,098,626 5.24% $792,650,868 3.22% $5,229,910 5,124,859$       97.99% 75,024,448$     17.22%
2014 2013 $0.6598 $1,175,639,416 5.62% $835,898,027 5.46% $5,515,255 5,426,284$       98.39% 83,081,610$     10.74%
2015 2014 $0.6598 $1,270,087,875 8.03% $894,861,696 7.05% $5,904,297 5,780,783$       97.91% 89,666,510$     7.93%
2016 2015 $0.6598 $1,326,200,720 4.42% $949,857,395 6.15% $6,267,159 6,213,465$       99.14% 102,898,754$   14.76%
2017 2016 $0.6598 $1,395,219,172 5.20% $997,593,915 5.03% $6,582,125 6,493,885$       98.66% 110,743,113$   7.62%
2018 2017 $0.6598 $1,464,365,817 4.96% $1,057,247,293 5.98% $6,975,718 6,830,742$       97.92% 122,102,068$   10.26%
2019 2018 $0.6598 $1,551,925,886 5.98% $1,120,153,343 5.95% $7,390,772 7,227,383$       97.79% 137,127,669$   12.31%
2020 2019 $0.6598 $1,850,609,838 19.25% $1,266,853,635 13.10% $8,358,700 TBD 97.00% 188,034,652$   37.12%

Annualized 7.40% 6.84% 97.68% 21.28%



TAX RATE OPTIONS
Budget FY 2020 FY 2019
Comparison of Tax Rates Proposed

$0.6598 $0.6178 $0.6598 $0.6599 $0.6809
Current Rate Effective Rate Current Rate Rollback Rate Full DS Rollback

Taxable Value $1,120,153,343 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635 $1,266,853,635

O&M Tax Rate $0.5650 $0.5292 $0.5712 $0.5713 $0.5713
Debt Service Tax Rate $0.0948 $0.0886 $0.0886 $0.0886 $0.1096
Total Tax Rate $0.6598 $0.6178 $0.6598 $0.6599 $0.6809
Change from current rate ($0.0420) $0.0000 $0.0001 $0.0211

Total Tax Levy $7,390,772 $7,826,622 $8,358,700 $8,359,967 $8,626,006
Estimated Collections - 97% $7,169,049 $7,591,823 $8,107,939 $8,109,168 $8,367,226
General Fund
Current Ad Valorem $6,139,000 $6,503,064 $7,019,180 $7,020,409 $7,020,409
Payment to TIRZ ($751,528) ($965,227) ($1,041,832) ($1,042,015) ($1,042,015)
Net General Fund Current AV Taxes $5,387,472 $5,537,837 $5,977,348 $5,978,394 $5,978,394
Debt Service
Current Ad Valorem $1,030,048 $1,088,759 $1,088,759 $1,088,759 $1,346,817
Payment to TIRZ ($126,097) ($161,601) ($161,601) ($161,601) ($199,903)
Net DS Current AV Taxes $903,951 $927,159 $927,159 $927,159 $1,146,914

Each $1M of Tax Value@97% $6,400 $5,993 $6,400 $6,401 $6,605
Penny Tax @ 97% Collection $108,655 $122,885 $122,885 $122,885 $122,885
Penny Tax @ 97% - net of TIRZ $95,353 $104,645 $104,645 $104,645 $104,645

Value of Average Home in Belton $164,329 $177,118 $177,118 $177,118 $177,118
Tax on Average Home $1,084 $1,094 $1,169 $1,169 $1,206
Change from current year $10 $85 $85 $122

FY 2020



AGENDA ITEMS

 Conduct a public hearing on the Proposed Tax Rate.


	Agenda - 082719
	City Manager's Memo
	#3 - Proclamation
	#5 - Minutes - 081319
	#6 - Staff Report - Board Appointments
	#7 - Staff Report - FIG Amendment
	#8 - Staff Report - YAC
	#9 - Staff Report - Zoning Change Wheat Road
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - Zoning Change S I35 Svc Road
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Zoning Change Standpipe Property
	#11 - Attachments

	#12 - Staff Report - Final Plat Sundin Addition
	#12 - Attachments

	#13 - Public Hearing on Tax Rate



